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YEARS ENDED
IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

OPERATING RESULTS
Net sales
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common and potential common
shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Research and development
Capital additions
Current ratio
Debt-to-equity ratio
Number of employees (in thousands)

NET SALES
DOLLARS IN BILLIONS

MAY 26, 2002

$1,494.8
$ (121.9)

$ (0.89)
$ (0.59)

177.5
177.5

$ 441.0
$ 1380
2.66
1.5%
10.1
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

MAY 27, 2001

$2,112.6
$ 2457

$ 140
$ 130

175.9
188.4

$ 4356
$ 2395
2.70
3.1%
10.3

MAY 28, 2000

$2,139.9
$ 6208

$ 338
$ 324

173.6
191.7

§ 386.1
$ 168.7
2.26
4.9%
10.5

MAY 30, 1999
$ 1,956.8
$(1,009.9
$  (6.04)
$  (6.04)
167.1
167.1
S 4713
$ 3175
1.49
51.7%
11.6
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R&D EXPERNSE
DOLLARS IN MILLIONS

MAY 31, 1898

$2,536.7
$ 98.6)

$ (0.60)
$ (0.60

163.9
163.9

$ 482.0
$ 6558
1.65
23.9%
13.0




Letter to Shareholders

During the year we grew our cash while
substantially reducing our inventories
and improving our gross margins.

Dear Shareholders,

Fiscal 2002 was a pivotal year for National Semiconductor, During the vear we grew our cash, while substantially
reducing our inventories and improving our gross margins. It was also a year of customer and market penetration
and increased silicon content in many key product applications. We won numerous manufacturing quality awards
in the process of executing our strategy. And, above all, we returned to profitability two quarters earlier than most
analysts expected.

National Semiconductor supplies circuits that are optimized to deliver the “Sight and Sound of
Information.” We are the premier analog company: a company whose products enable our customers to deliver
the best possible display technologies, from conventional CRTs to the newest flat-panel LCD displays. We also offer
state-of-the-art audio solutions packaged in the smallest form factor for cell phones and other portable electron-
ics. In addition, we provide world class wireless solutions for quick-locking phase-locked loop circuits that ensure
fast-acting and reliable cell phone connectivity. Our complete GSM phone solution, integrated into four tiny chips
for the Ericsson T-66 phone, recently received widespread international press coverage in an Associated Press story
about the power of integration. National is also a leader in other analog markets, such as power management,
where a wide range of specifically engineered devices meet the needs of electronic systems from handheld devices
to desktop and mainframe computers, extending battery life in portable systems and monitoring system operation
with built-in automated control functions.

We also offer a rich portfolio of networking technologies, from advanced PC and network interface prod-
ucts to enterprise network and optical storage technology. As part of this, we support key standards for local area
networks ranging from Ethernet™ to Bluetooth™

Our partners are leaders in each of these markets. Companies like Samsung and LG-Philips work with us
on exciting display technologies and other innovative developments. Companies such as Nokia, Motorola and Sony
Ericsson adopt more and more of our solutions for their cellular phone offerings. Just recently, we celebrated the

shipment of our one-millionth Geode™ processor to Wyse Technology, our partner in the thin client market and




We returned te profitability twe quarters
earlier than most analysts expected.

the world's leading supplier of thin client systems and smart displays. Working closely with Microsoft Corporation,
we also helped to create the winning “Mira” platform based on that same Geode technology. “Mira” was Microsoft's
development code name for a technology to develop a new market for thin client systems in the home, using what
Microsoft calls Windows® Powered Smart Displays.

The power of our strategy —- using our system on a chip capability to leverage National’s analog lead-
ership —- was superbly demonstrated by the acceptance of our 4-chip GSM mobile phone chipset, which makes
up the electronic content of the Ericsson T66 and the Sony Ericsson T600 cell phones. In addition, a new phone
branded “Panda” is currently being ramped into production in China using the same basic chipset. We are now
enhancing that chipset to support the new GPRS standard, and we continue working to become a leader in 3G
(third generation) cellular phone chipsets.

One notable trend in fiscal 2002 was the significant shift in market activity toward the Asia/Pacific region,
which now accounts for 44 percent of our worldwide sales. And much of this activity is shifting toward China. So
we have already bolstered our resources in the Asia/Pacific region. We are focusing aggressively on sales in China
through direct account activities supported by our offices in Hong Kong, Beijing, Shanghai and Guangzhou. We
also have established two development laboratories in China. Going forward, we will continue to evaluate our
needs for additional resources in China.

We saw tremendous leadership this year from our Central Technology and Manufacturing Group
(CTMG). They continued to cut costs and inventories during the year, while growing our gross margins from
32 percent in the first quarter to 43 percent in the fourth quarter. And they did this while maintaining the high-
est level of customer focus and service. This is reflected in the array of awards we won from key customers.
To name just a few: Nokia Number 1 Vendor rating; Siemens Mobile group: Quality Vendor of the year; Siemens
ICM: Quality Web Site Information excellence; Stack: the prestigious Gold Stack award; Celestica: Perfect

Quality rating; Sony North America: Highest Quality rating; Philips: Excellent Overall Quality; Bosch: Good
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Quality Performance; Delphi: Number 1 in Quality, Responsiveness and Part Per Million defect performance;
Celestica Canada: Quality and Delivery; and Seagate: Partner in Excellence.

So, providing the right analog-based products to the right customers, in the right markets, is not only the
right thing to do — but we continue to win awards in the process. Beyond winning awards, we proved we can
be profitable. Given our current cost structure and product and customer portfolios, we believe that we should be
able to continue our profit momentum.

In closing, I must address the issue of corporate governance, which has been so prominent in the
media and our political arena over the last several months. The confidence of our investment community in cor-
porate America has been shaken. You deserve better. National Semiconductor has worked hard to build a strong
balance sheet, one that is rich in cash and low in debt. We have no “synthetic leases” or “off balance sheet
accounts” or “blue smoke and mirrors.” Your CEO and CFO will proudly certify National Semiconductor’s state-
ments to the public, and our Board of Directors will continue to live up to the highest standards of corporate
governance and disclosure.

We are a company focused on fundamentals and proud of our accomplishments. We are especially proud
of our employees. They are executing the strategy well. Our customer and market penetration confirms this suc-
cess. We acknowledge that there is still work to be done, but we know we are pointed in the right direction. Your

confidence is a high priority to us. We will continue to work hard to earn that confidence. We thank you for stay-

A

Brian L. Halla
Chairman of the Board, President and CEO
National Semiconductor Corporation

ing with us. We believe our future is bright.




National Is the Premier Analog Company
Driving the Information Age

DISPLAYS AND IMAGING
Thin, light, low power. These are the keys to today’s small-footprint flat display

screens with unprecedented brightness, color and sharpness. From displays for
handheld mobile phones and PDAs, to larger desktop monitors and even flat-
panel TV screens, National’'s analog and mixed-signal components are the critical
elements bringing bright, high-quality images to the user while saving both space

and power.

INFORMATION ACCESS DEVICES

National Semiconductor is leading the development of innovations that bring
entertainment and information into the home, from set-top boxes to advanced
DVD players and new concepts such as Microsoft's vision of Windows® Powered
Smart Displays. National provides a complete reference design for its customers to
implement this new wireless home network technology. In the business world,
thin clients that store all applications and data on central servers offer increased
manageability and security at the lowest possible cost of ownership.




Combining real-world analog and state-of-the-art digital technologies, National Semiconductor is focused on the
fast-growing markets for wireless handsets; display and imaging technologies; information infrastructure; and
information access devices. Our chips power mobile and cordless phones, flat-panel and conventional CRT
displays and monitors, high-speed local area networks, TV set-top boxes, DVD and CD players, Internet
access devices and a host of other electronic systems — all with the high-quality audio and imaging that bring
people the Sight and Sound of Information.

INFORMATION INFRASTRUCTURE

National covers all the bases in networking from advanced PC and network
interface products to enterprise optical storage technology. Our integrated
products address the challenges of networking manageability and security for
our customers. From switches to optics to EthernetMax™, we offer an end-to-
end solution for enterprise networks.

WIRELESS HANDSETS
National’s chips support all the worldwide mobile and cordless phone spec-

@ ©©

ifications, including GSM/GPRS, CDMA wireless and DECT/DCT cordless stan- B BTN PRI (Pl d ¢ e ¢4

dards. OQur leadership in analog and mixed-signal technologies is the underlying

element that enables us to offer our customers complete wireless solutions for
products in both the global mobile phone and cordless phone markets. To fit
into the world’s smallest mobile handset, we integrated the entire mobile phone

functionality into a set of four tiny silicon chips. And our white LED drivers bring

full-color, backlit displays to mobile phones.
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Report of Management

The management of National Semiconductor Corporation and its
subsidiaries is responsible for the preparation, integrity and objec-
tivity of the accompanying consolidated financial statements and
refated information.

The statements have been prepared by us in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles and, in the judgment of
management, present fairly our financial position, results of oper-
ations and cash flows, These statements necessarily include
amounts that are based on our best estimates and judgments and
give due consideration to materiality. We also prepared the other
information in the annual report and are responsible for its accu-
racy and consistency with the financial statements.

Our financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP,
independent auditors who, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, express an
opinion on the fairness of the financial statement presentation. We
have made available to KPMG all of our financial records and
related data, as well as minutes of shareholders’ and directors’
meetings. In addition, we believe that all representations made
during the audit were valid and appropriate.

We maintain a system of internal controls designed to pro-
vide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and that
transactions are executed in accordance with management’s
authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Such controls

AU

Brian L. Halla
Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer
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Lewis Chew
Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

include clearly defined lines of responsibility and delegation of
authority; communication of formal policies and procedures that
demand employees maintain the highest level of ethical standards
in the conduct of our business; and the careful selection, training
and development of employees. Our system of internal controls
and procedures is regularly reviewed and revised, where appro-
priate, to address changing circumstances and requirements. We
also maintain a strong internal auditing program that assesses the
effectiveness of internal controls and recommends possible
improvements. As part of the audit of our financial statements,
KPMG has considered the system of internal controls, tested the
system to the extent required by auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and provided us with
internal control recommendations. Such consideration is to assist in
the design of the audit and not to express an opinion of the ade-
quacy of controls. We believe that the system of internal controls
is effective, and that an appropriate balance between the costs and
benefits of such a system has been achieved.

The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for our finan-
cial statements through its three-member audit committee com-
posed solely of non-employee directors. The audit committee
provides oversight to the financial reporting process and meets peri-
odically with KPMG, our management and the internal auditors.
KPMG and the internal auditors have direct access to our audit com-
mittee to discuss the scope and results of their audit work, the ade-

quacy of internal controls and the quality of financial reporting.

Btist €. Ao B

Robert E. DeBarr
Controller and
Chief Accounting Officer




Five-Year Selected Financial Data

YEARS ENDED
IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMQUNTS

OPERATING RESULTS

Net sales

Operating costs and expenses

Operating income (loss)

Interest income (expense), net

Other income, net

Income (loss) before income taxes
and extraordinary item

Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item
Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary item:
Basic
Diluted
Net income (loss):
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average common and
potential common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

FINANCIAL POSITION AT YEAR-END
Working capital

Total assets

Long-term debt

Total debt

Shareholders’ equity

OTHER DATA

Research and development

Capital additions

Number of employees (in thousands)

MAY 26, 2002 MAY 27, 2001 MAY 28, 2000
$1,494.8 $2,112.6 $2,139.9
1,652.6 1,887.3 1,795.1

(157.8) 2253 344.8
21.3 52.0 15.3
13.1 | 29.8 282.4

(123.4) 307.1 642.5
(1.5) 61.4 14.9

$ (121.9) $ 2457 $ 6276
$ (121.9) $ 2457 $ 6208
$ (0.69) $  1.40 $ 3.62
$ (0.89) $  1.30 $ 327
$ (0.69) $  1.40 $ 338
$ (0.89) § 130 $ 324

177.5 175.9 173.6

177.5 188.4 1917
$ 669.3 $ 803.2 $ 791.1
$2,288.8 $2,362.3 $2,382.2
$ 204 S 262 $ 486
$ 25.9 $ 556 $ 800
$1,781.1 $1,767.9 $1,643.3
$ 441.0 $ 4356 $ 386.1
$ 138.0 $ 2395 $ 1687

10.1 10.3 105

National has not paid cash dividends on the common stock in any of the vears presented above.

MAY 30, 1999

$ 1,956.8
3,040.6
(1,083.8)
2.2
0.6

(1,085.4)
(75.5)
5(1,0099)
$(1,009.9)

$ 4713
$ 3175
116

MAY 31, 1998

$2,536.7
2,682.5
(145.8)
223
23.8

99.7)

(1D
$ (98.6)
s (98.6)

$ 5146
$3,100.7
$ 390.7
$ 444.6
$1,858.9




Management's Discussion & Analysis

The statements contained in the outlook section and within certain
sections of management’s discussion and analysis are forward-look-
ing based on our current expectations and management’s estimates
and actual results may differ materially. The forward-looking state-
ments reference a number of risks and uncertainties. Other risks
and uncertainties include, but are not limited to, the general econ-
omy, the changing environment of the semiconductor industry,
competitive products and pricing, growth in the wireless, PC and
communications infrastructure industries, regulatory and interna-
tional conditions, the effects of legal and administrative cases and
proceedings, and other risks and uncertainties that we may detail
from time to time in our reports and filings with the SEC.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with
the consolidated financial statements and notes thereto:

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

We believe the following critical accounting policies are those poli-
cies that have a significant effect on the determination of our finan-
cial position and results of operations. These policies also require

us to make our most difficult and subjective judgments:

REVENUE RECOGHNITION

We recognize revenue from the sale of semiconductor products
upon shipment, provided title and risk of loss have passed to the
customer, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the
revenue is reasonably assured. Service revenues are recognized as
the services are provided or as milestones are achieved, depend-
ing on the terms of the arrangement. We record at the time of ship-
ment a provision for estimated future returns. Approximately 47
percent of our semiconductor product sales are sold through dis-
tributors. We have agreements with our distributors for various
programs, including pricing adjustments based on resales, scrap
allowances and volume incentives. The revenue we record for
these distribution sales is net of estimated provisions for these pro-
grams. When determining this net distribution revenue, we must
make significant judgments and estimates. Our estimates are based
upon historical experience rates, inventory levels in the distribu-
tion channel, current economic trends and other related factors. To
date the actual distributor activity has been consistent with the
provisions we made based on our estimates. However, because of
the inherent nature of estimates, there is always a risk that there
could be significant differences between actual amounts and our
estimates. Our financial condition and operating results are

dependent on our ability to make reliable estimates and we

believe that our estimates are reasonable. However, different judg-
ments or estimates could result in variances that might be signifi-
cant to reported operating results.

Intellectual property income is not classified as revenue. This
income is classified as non-operating income and is recognized
when the license is delivered and no further obligations to the
other party exist,

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approxi-
mates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis, or market. We reduce
the carrying value of inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmar-
ketable inventory by an amount that is the difference between its
cost and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand and market conditions. Our products are classified as
either custom, which are those products manufactured with cus-
tomer-specified features or characteristics, or non-custom, which are
those products that do not have customer-specified features or char-
acteristics. We evaluate obsolescence by analyzing the inventory
aging, order backlog and future customer demand on an individual
product basis. If actual demand were to be substantially lower than
what we have estimated, we may be required to write-down inven-
tory below the current carrying value. While our estimates require us
to make significant judgments and assumptions regarding future
events, we believe our relationships with our customers, combined
with our understanding of the end-markets we serve, provide us the
ability to make reliable estimates. We also evaluate the carrying value
of inventory for lower of cost or market on an individual product
basis, and these evaluations are based on the difference between net
realizable value and standard cost. Net realizable value is determined
as the selling price of the product less estimated cost of disposal.
When necessary, we reduce the carrying value of inventory to the
lower of cost or the net realizable value. If actual market conditions
and resulting product sales were to be less favorable than what we

have projected, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

AMD OTHER LOMG-LIVED ASSETS

We assess the impairment of long-lived assets whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not

be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to




result from their use and eventual disposition. Our long-lived assets
subject to this evaluation include property, plant and equipment.
We assess the impairment of goodwill annually in our fourth
fiscal quarter and whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that it is more likely than not that an impair-
ment loss has been incurred. Intangible assets other than
goodwill are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that its carrying value may
not be recoverable. Other intangible assets subject to this eval-
uation include acquired patented and unpatented technology.
We are required to make judgments and assumptions in iden-
tifying those events or changes in circumstances that may trig-
ger impairment. Some of those factors we consider include:

e  Significant decrease in the market value of an asset

e  Significant changes in the extent or manner for which the asset
is being used or in its physical condition

* A significant change, delay or departure in our business strategy
related to the asset

e Significant negative change in the business climate, industry or
economic conditions

o Current period operating losses or negative cash flow
combined with a history of similar losses or a forecast that

indicates continuing losses associated with the use of an asset

In view of the recent general economic decline, we are peri-
odically evaluating whether an impairment of our identifiable intan-
gible assets and other long-lived assets has occurred. Our evaluation
includes an analysis of estimated future undiscounted net cash flows
expected to be generated by the assets over their remaining esti-
mated useful lives. If the estimated future undiscounted net cash
flows are insufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets over
the remaining estimated useful lives, we will record an impairment
loss in the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds
the fair value. We determine fair value based on discounted cash
flows using a discount rate commensurate with the risk inherent in
our current business model. If, as a result of our analysis, we deter-
mine that our identifiable intangible assets or other long-lived assets
have been impaired, we will recognize an impairment loss in the
period in which the impairment is determined. Any such impair-
ment charge could be significant and could have a material adverse
effect on our financial position and results of operations, if and

when the impairment is recorded. Major factors that influence our

10

cash flow analysis are our estimates for future revenue and expens-
es associated with the use of the asset. Different estimates could
have a significant impact on the results of our evaluation.

We performed a goodwill impairment review upon initial adop-
tion of the new accounting rules for goodwill as of the beginning of
fiscal 2002. We also performed an annual review for goodwill impair-
ment in our fourth fiscal quarter. Our impairment review is based on
comparing the fair value to the carrying value of the reporting units
with goodwill. The fair value of a reporting unit is measured at the
business unit level using a discounted cash flow approach that incor-
porates our estimates of future revenues and costs for those business
units with goodwill. We use a discount rate that is commensurate
with the risk inherent in the current business model for each busi-
ness unit with goodwill. Reporting units with goodwill include our
wireless, displays and power business units that are operating seg-
ments within our Analog reportable segment and our wired com-
munications group that is reported within other operating segments.
The estimates we have used are consistent with the plans and esti-
mates that we are using to manage the underlying businesses. If we
fail to deliver new products for these business units, if the products
fail to gain expected market acceptance, or market conditions for
these businesses fail to improve, our revenue and cost forecasts may
not be achieved and we may incur charges for goodwill impairment,
which could be significant and could have a material adverse effect

on our financial position and results of operations.

OVERVIEW

We recorded net sales of $1.5 billion in fiscal 2002. This com-
pares to $2.1 billion in both fiscal 2001 and fiscal 2000. The
decline in sales for fiscal 2002 came from lower demand seen
broadly across semiconductor markets, as business conditions
in the semiconductor industry remained weak throughout the
fiscal year.

In contrast, market conditions were very strong in the first
half of fiscal 2001. As we entered into the second half of fiscal
2001, market conditions for the semiconductor industry quickly
weakened. As a result, we experienced growth in sales for the
first half of fiscal 2001 over sales for the first half of fiscal 2000.
This was essentially offset by a sharp decline in sales for the sec-
ond half of fiscal 2001, resulting in year over year flat sales.

In fiscal 2002, we recorded a net loss of $121.9 million. This
compares to net income of $245.7 million in fiscal 2001 and
$620.8 million in fiscal 2000. Our operating results for fiscal 2002
have been primarily affected by lower sales as a result of slower

demand from the overall economic slowdown.




ffanagement's Discussion & Analysis

The net loss for fiscal 2002 included $9.3 million of special
items. The special items included $1.3 million for in-process R&D
charges related to the acquisitions of Fincitec Oy, ARSmikro OU
and Wireless Solutions Sweden AB (See Note 4). Special items also
included a net charge of $8.0 million related to cost reduction
actions (See Note 3). Net income for fiscal 2001 included special
items of $51.9 million, including $16.2 million for in-process R&D
charges related to acquisitions during the year (See Note 4) and a
$35.7 million net charge for cost reduction actions (See Note 3).

For fiscal 2000, net income included special items of $55.3 mil-
lion. Special items in fiscal 2000 included a $26.8 million gain from
the sale of assets of the Cyrix PC microprocessor business (See Note
3) and a $4.2 million in-process R&D charge related to an acquisition
(See Note 4). Special items also included credits of $14.7 million
related to restructuring of operations (See Note 3) and $18.0 million
related to an indemnity agreement with Fairchild Semiconductor that
expired in March 2000 (See Note 3). In addition to these special
items, fiscal 2000 net income included a $270.7 million gain from our
sale of shares of Fairchild stock and an extraordinary loss of $6.8 mil-
lion (net of taxes of $0.4 million). We sold the shares of Fairchild
stock as part of an initial public offering and a secondary offering
that Fairchild completed during the year. We recorded the extraordi-
nary loss in connection with the early redemption of our 6.5 percent
convertible subordinated notes due 2002.

SALES

The following discussion is based on our reportable segments

described in Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our sales for fiscal 2002 declined significantly year on year, as

market conditions for the semiconduc-

tor industry remained weak compared

to fiscal 2001. Although we saw a slight

] $201.2
] $198.0

increase in unit volume in the second
half of fiscal 2002, the sales decline for

the year was primarily due to a

~ ] $150.2

decreased volume of shipments. Lower
average selling prices were also a factor,
as we saw a shift in product mix toward

lower priced products and took some

pricing actions under programs to gain

0z o 00 increased market share in target areas.

The Analog segment, which repre-

NET SALES
PER EMPLOYEE
DOLLARS (N THOUSANDS

sents 75 percent of our total sales, expe-
rienced a decline in sales of 26 percent

for fiscal 2002 from sales for fiscal 2001. The decline in fiscal 2002
was due to a drop in unit volume together with decreases in aver-
age selling prices. Average selling prices were down due to shifts
in product mix as well as some decline in prices, particularly on
multisource products, which tend to be viewed as commodity
products. Within the Analog segment, sales of application-specific
wireless products, including radio frequency building blocks,
declined in fiscal 2002' by 36 percent from sales in fiscal 2001. In
the broad-based analog markets, sales of power management and
amplifier products were also down in fiscal 2002 from sales in fis-
cal 2001 by 33 percent and 30 percent, respectively. Only sales of
display products increased in fiscal 2002. Those sales increased by
6 percent over sales in fiscal 2001, as a large increase in unit vol-
ume more than offset decreases in average selling prices.

Sales for fiscal 2002 for the Information Appliances segment
declined 12 percent from sales for fiscal 2001. The decline was
primarily driven by lower unit volume, as average selling prices
increased slightly. Since a large part of our portfolio of information
appliance products is still consumed in the PC marketplace, the
year-to-year stowdown in demand for personal computers and PC-
related products had a significant effect in the decline in sales for
the Information Appliance segment. In addition, the market adop-
tion of emerging information appliances that are not PCs has been
slower than expected.

For fiscal 2002, sales declined in all geographic regions com-
pared to sales for fiscal 2001. The decreases were 46 percent in the
Americas, 40 percent in Europe, 32 percent in Japan and 2 percent
in the Asia Pacific region. Sales for fiscal 2002 as a percentage of
total sales increased to 44 percent for the Asia Pacific region, while
decreasing to 25 percent in the Americas and 21 percent in
Europe. Sales as a percentage of total sales held at 10 percent in
Japan. Foreign currency-denominated sales in fiscal 2002 were
unfavorably affected by foreign currency exchange rate fluctua-
tions as the Japanese yen, pound sterling and euro all weakened
against the dollar, but the impact from this was minimal since less
than a quarter of our total sales for fiscal 2002 was denominated
in foreign currency.

Sales overall for fiscal 2001 were flat compared to sales for fiscal
2000. For the first half of fiscal 2001, we experienced growing
sales as a result of higher volumes while average selling prices
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were relatively flat. Our sales declined significantly in the second
half of fiscal 2001, as market conditions for the semiconductor
industry quickly weakened. The decline was shown in reduced
shipments, as average selling prices remained relatively the same.

Fiscal 2001 sales for the Analog segment were flat compared
to sales in fiscal 2000. Sales of analog products led the growth in
sales for the first half of fiscal 2001 with an increase of 25 percent
over sales for the comparable first half of fiscal 2000. This growth
was attributable to higher unit volume combined with slightly high-
er average selling prices. Significant decline in sales for analog
products in the second half of fiscal 2001 essentially offset the
growth experienced in the first half of the fiscal year. Analog prod-
uct sales in the second half of fiscal 2001 declined 21 percent com-
pared to sales in the comparable second half of fiscal 2000, mainly
due to a sharp drop in unit volume while average selling prices
remained fairly stable. Sales of application-specific wireless prod-
ucts, including radio frequency building blocks, grew 3 percent in
fiscal 2001 over fiscal 2000. This was driven by sales growth of 24
percent in the first half of fiscal 2001 over the comparable first half
of fiscal 2000 followed by a decline of 16 percent in sales for the
second half of fiscal 2001. Sales of amplifiers, interface and power
management products also grew in fiscal 2001 by 7 percent, 5 per-
cent and 2 percent, respectively, over sales in fiscal 2000. This was
driven by sales growth in the first half of fiscal 2001 of 39 percent,
42 percent and 31 percent, respectively, over the comparable first
half of fiscal 2000. Declines in the second half of the fiscal year of
20 percent, 23 percent and 22 percent, respectively, from the com-
parable second half of fiscal 2000, partially offset the growth in the
first half of the fiscal year.

Sales in fiscal 2001 for the Information Appliance segment
declined by 5 percent from sales in fiscal 2000 due to decreases
in both unit shipments and average selling prices. While the
Information Appliance segment experienced an 18 percent growth
in sales for the first half of fiscal 2001 over the comparable first half
of fiscal 2000, it was more than offset by a 25 percent decline in
sales for the second half of fiscal 2001 from the comparable second
half of fiscal 2000. The slowdown in demand for personal comput-
ers and PC-related products contributed to the decline in sales for
the Information Appliance segment since a large part of the port-

folio of information appliance products is still consumed in the PC
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marketplace. The slower than expected adoption of emerging infor-
mation appliances that are not PCs also had a negative impact on
growth. The fiscal 2000 comparison excludes sales from the Cyrix
PC microprocessor unit, which we sold in September 1999,
Compared to sales in fiscal 2000,
fiscal 2001 sales increased in Japan by
11 percent and in the Asia Pacific
region by 2 percent, while sales
decreased in the Americas by 8 percent
and in Europe by 1 percent. As the

[ 110.9%
S "1181%

Japanese yen and most European cur-

o

rencies weakened against the dollar,
foreign currency exchange rate fluctu-
ation had an unfavorable impact on

foreign currency-denominated sales for

(106%) [ ] S

fiscal 2001. However, this impact was

minimal since less than a quarter of

NET OPERATING
MARGIN

AS A PERCENT OF SALES

our total sales was denominated in for-
eign currency. Sales for fiscal 2001 as a
percentage of total sales increased to
32 percent in the Asia Pacific region and 10 percent in Japan, while
declining to 33 percent in the Americas and remaining flat at 25

percent in Europe.

GROSS MARGIN

Gross margin as a percentage of sales was 37 percent in fiscal 2002
compared to 49 percent in fiscal 2001 and 46 percent in fiscal 2000.
The erosion in gross margin was primarily driven by lower factory
utilization. Wafer fabrication capacity utilization during fiscal 2002
ran at 55 percent, as production activity was reduced considerably
by the weakened business conditions in the semiconductor indus-
try. This compares with wafer fabrication capacity utilization for fis-
cal 2001 of 69 percent when business conditions in the
semiconductor industry were much stronger, particularly in the first
half of the fiscal year. We also saw lower margins from some prod-
ucts in fiscal 2002, caused mostly from a shift in product sales mix
and to a lesser extent from pricing pressure, which also impacted
the lower gross margin,

The increase in gross margin for fiscal 2001 was primarily driv-
en by improved product mix, as we shipped more high contribu-
tion analog and wireless products, combined with improved
manufacturing efficiency and higher factory utilization during the
first half of fiscal 2001. Wafer fabrication capacity utilization in the
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first half of fiscal 2001 ran at 88 percent, but dropped to 53 percent
in the second half of the fiscal year when business conditions in the
semiconductor industry quickly deteriorated and production activi-
ty was significantly reduced. For the year as a whole, wafer fabri-
cation capacity utilization was 69 percent compared to 75 percent
in fiscal 2000.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Research and development expenses in fiscal 2002 were $441.0 mil-
lion, or 30 percent of sales, compared to $435.6 million in fiscal
2001, or 21 percent of sales, and $386.1 million in fiscal 2000, or 18
percent of sales. These amounts exclude in-process R&D charges of
$1.3 million in fiscal 2002, $16.2 million in fiscal 2001 and $4.2 mil-
lion in fiscal 2000 related to acquisitions (see Note 4). The in-
process R&D charges are included in the consolidated statements
of operations as a component of special items. Higher R&D
expenses for fiscal 2002 result mainly from a license agreement
with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company. The agree-
ment, which began in fiscal 2001, allows us to gain access to a vari-
ety of TSMC’s advanced sub-micron processes for use in our Maine
facility as desired, if and when those processes are developed by
TSMC. These advanced process technologies are expected to accel-
erate the development of high performance digital and mixed-sig-
nal products in the markets for wireless handsets, displays,
information appliances and information infrastructure. During fiscal
2002, we devoted approximately 75 percent of our R&D effort
towards new product development and 25 percent towards the
development of process and support technology. Compared to fis-
cal 2001, this represents a 6 percent decrease in spending for new
product development and a 13 percent increase towards the devel-
opment of process and support technology. While spending for
new product development declined slightly, we continue to focus
our R&D investment on our key strategic programs. We continue to
invest in the development of new analog and mixed-signal tech-
nology-based products for applications in the wireless handsets,
displays, information appliances and information infrastructure
markets. We also continue to devote resources towards developing
new cores and integrating those cores with other technological
capabilities to create system-on-a-chip solutions.

The increase in R&D expenses for fiscal 2001 reflected
increased investment in the development of new analog and
mixed-signal technology-based products for applications in the
wireless handsets, displays, information appliances and information

infrastructure markets, as well as in the process technologies need-

ed to support these products.

SELLING, GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE §

Selling, general and administrative . 2 2
expenses in fiscal 2002 were $260.9 E B,
million, or 18 percent of sales, com- g ﬁ‘ \
pared to $324.7 million in fiscal g 2 §
2001, or 15 percent of sales, and 8 -
$309.4 million in fiscal 2000, or 15

percent of sales. The fiscal 2001 é E: §
SG&A expenses included a $20.5 w__J ” “
million expense associated with the 02 01 00
charitable donation of equity secu- T 56&A [ R&D

0O COST OF SALES

OPERATING COSTS
AND EXPENSES
AS A PERCENT OF SALES

rities that were part of our invest-
ment portfolio. We donated the
securities to establish the National
Semiconductor Foundation. The fis-
cal 2001 SG&A expenses also included goodwill amortization of
$13.0 million. We no longer record goodwill amortization since
adopting new accounting rules beginning in fiscal 2002. Excluding
these expenses, SG&A expenses for fiscal 2002 declined 10 per-
cent from SG&A expenses for fiscal 2001. Overall the decline in fis-
cal 2002 expenses reflects actions that we implemented in the
second half of fiscal 2001 to reduce our spending in response to
weakened business conditions, combined with our efforts to fur-
ther control spending as business conditions remained weak
throughout fiscal 2002. These actions reduced payroll and employ-
ee benefit expenses, as well as discretionary selling and marketing
program expenses.

The increase in SG&A expenses for fiscal 2001 compared to
fiscal 2000 is primarily due to the $20.5 million donation expense
that we recorded in fiscal 2001. Excluding that expense, SG&A
expenses in fiscal 2001 actually declined by two percent from
SG&A expenses in fiscal 2000. Actions that we implemented to
reduce spending in the second half of fiscal 2001 in response to
weakened business conditions contributed to the decline in these
expenses for fiscal 2001. The effect of those cost reduction actions

was largely offset by higher pay rates in fiscal 2001 over fiscal 2000.
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COST-REDUCTION PROGRAMS

AND RESTRUCTURING OF OPERATIONS

For fiscal 2002, we recorded a charge of $12.5 million for cost-
reduction actions associated with the plan we announced in May
2002 to reposition our resources. This charge was partially offset by
a credit of $4.5 million of remaining reserves that were no longer
needed for previously announced actions because the activities
were completed in fiscal 2002 at a lower cost than originally esti-
mated. See Note 3 of the consolidated financial statements for a
more complete discussion of these charges, as well as other activi-

ty during fiscal 2002 related to previously announced actions.

CHARGE FOR ACQUIRED

IN-PROCESS RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

In connection with our acquisitions during fiscal 2002 of the com-
bined companies of Fincitec Oy and ARSmikro OU, and separate-
ly of Wireless Solutions Sweden AB, $0.2 million and $1.1 million
of the total purchase price for each acquisition were respectively
allocated to the value of in-process R&D. In connection with our
acquisitions during fiscal 2001 of Vivid Semiconductor and
innoComm Wireless, $4.1 million and $12.1 million of the total
purchase price for each acquisition were respectively allocated to
the value of in-process R&D. In connection with the acquisition
of Algorex in fiscal 2000, we allocated $4.2 million of the total
purchase price to the value of in-process R&D. These amounts
were expensed upon acquisition because technological feasibili-
ty had not been established and no alternative uses existed for
the technologies.

Fincitec OY and ARSmikro OU develop low-voltage, low-
power application-specific integrated circuits for battery-powered
devices. The acquisition is expected to strengthen our development
capabilities for power management circuits for the portable market.
It should help us expand our suite of integrated and discrete sili-
con solutions for handheld devices, including cell phones, person-
al digital assistants, digital cameras and similar electronic devices.
Wireless Solutions Sweden AB is a developer of wireless solutions
ranging from telemetry to mobile phones to wireless networking,
including Bluetooth. This acquisition should help us to deliver
complete wireless reference designs, including silicon chipsets,

hardware and software. InnoComm is a developer of chipsets for
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wireless networking applications. Its expertise in short-range wire-

less technologies such as Bluetooth and HomeRF is intended to
complement our existing base of design and product expertise. We
intend to use Vivid's technologies and analog engineering
resources to increase our strength in creating silicon solutions for
the flat-panel display market. Algorex is a provider of high per-
formance digital signal processing products, architecture and soft-
ware technologies for the wireless communication markets and
these technologies should enhance our future capability to provide
complete chipset solutions for the cellular phone and wireless
information appliance markets.

For each acquisition, the fair value of the in-process R&D was
based on discounted projected net cash flows expected to be
derived after successful completion of the existing R&D projects.
Estimates of future cash flows from revenues were based primarily
on market growth assumptions, lives of underlying technologies
and our expected share of market. Gross profit projections were
based on our experience with products that were similar in nature
or products sold into markets with similar characteristics. Estimated
operating expenses, income taxes and capital charges were deduct-
ed from gross profit to determine net operating income for the in-
process R&D projects. Operating expenses were estimated as a
percentage of revenue and included sales and marketing expenses
and development costs to maintain the technology once it has
achieved technological feasibility. We discounted the net cash flows
of the in-process R&D projects using probable adjusted discount
rates that approximated the overall rate of return for each acquisi-
tion as a whole and reflected the inherent uncertainties surround-

ing the development of in-process R&D projects.

INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

For fiscal 2002, we earned net interest income of $21.3 million com-
pared to $52.0 million in fiscal 2001 and $15.3 million in fiscal 2000.
The decrease in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to lower average
interest rates on lower average cash balances during fiscal 2002
compared to fiscal 2001. Offsetting interest expense was slightly
lower for fiscal 2002 as we continued to reduce our outstanding
debt balances. The increase in net interest income for fiscal 2001
over fiscal 2000 was due to both higher average cash balances and
slightly higher interest rates in fiscal 2001 than in fiscal 2000. In
addition, interest expense in fiscal 2001 was significantly lower than
in fiscal 2000 due to lower debt, since we repaid our $258.8 mil-

lion convertible subordinated notes in November 1999.
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OTHER INCOME, MET

Other income, net was $13.1 million for fiscal 2002, compared to
$29.8 million for fiscal 2001 and $282.4 million for fiscal 2000. The
components of other income, net for fiscal 2002 included $11.6 mil-
lion of net intellectual property income, a $2.1 million net gain
from equity investments and $0.6 million from other miscellaneous
losses. Net intellectual property income for fiscal 2002 included a
gain of $8.3 million from the settlement of a patent infringement
lawsuit. The remaining intellectual property income was from a
number of individually small agreements. Beginning in fiscal 2002,
equity in losses of investmenis accounted for under the equity
method was included in net gain from equity investments. Other
income, net for fiscal 2001 and 2000 has been re-characterized to
conform with this classification. Other income, net for fiscal 2001
included a net gain from equity investments of $23.5 million and
net intellectual property income of $6.3 million. The net gain from
equity investments for fiscal 2001 included a gain of $20.5 million
from the distribution of equity securities that were part of our
investment portfolio, which we donated to establish the National
Semiconductor Foundation. An expense for the same amount asso-
ciated with the donation was included in SG&A expenses for fiscal
2001. Net intellectual property income for fiscal 2001 included $2.4
million from a single significant licensing agreement with a Korean
company and the remainder from a number of individually small
agreements. Other income, net for 2000 included a net gain from
equity investments of $269.6 million, $11.5 million of net intellec-
tual property income and other miscellaneous income of $1.3 mil-
lion. Net intellectual property income for fiscal 2000 related

primarily to two significant licensing agreements.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

We recorded an income tax benefit of $1.5 million in fiscal 2002,
compared to income tax expense of $61.4 million in fiscal 2001
and $14.9 million in fiscal 2000. The fiscal 2002 tax benefit repre-
sented an expected refund of U.S. taxes as a result of the new fed-
eral tax act, which was partially offset by taxes due on
international income. The effective 1ax rate for fiscal 2002 was one
percent compared to effective tax rates of 20 percent for fiscal
2001 and two percent for fiscal 2000. Our ability to realize net
deferred tax assets (884.4 million at May 26, 2002) is primarily

dependent on our ability to generate future U.S. taxable income.

We believe that it is more likely than not that forecasted U.S. tax-
able income will be sufficient to utilize these tax assets. However,
it is always possible that we will not be able to meet our expecta-

tions of future U.S. taxable income.

FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Our foreign operations include manufacturing facilities in the Asia
Pacific region and Europe and sales offices throughout the Asia
Pacific region, Europe and Japan. A portion of the transactions at
these facilities is denominated in local currency, which exposes us
to risk from exchange rate fluctuations. Our exposure from expens-
es at foreign manufacturing facilities is concentrated in pound ster-
ling, Singapore dollar and Malaysian ringgit. Where practical, we
hedge net non-U.S. dollar denominated asset and liability positions
using forward exchange and purchased option contracts. Our
exposure from foreign revenue is limited to the Japanese yen and
the euro. We hedge up to 100 percent of the notional value of out-
standing customer orders denominated in foreign currency, using
forward exchange contracts and over-the-counter foreign currency
options. A portion of anticipated foreign sales commitments is, at
times, hedged using purchased option contracts that have an orig-

inal maturity of one year or less.

FIMANCIAL MARKET RISKS

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. To mitigate
these risks, we use derivative financial instruments. We do not use
derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Due to the short-term nature of the major portion of our cash
portfolio, a series of severe cuts in interest rates, such as those
recently experienced, does have a significant impact on the
amount of interest income we can earn from our cash portfolio.
An increase in interest rates benefits us due to our large net cash
position. An increase in interest rates would not necessarily
increase interest expense due to the fixed rates of our existing
debt obligations.

A substantial majority of our revenue and capital spending
is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we enter into transactions
in other currencies, primarily the Japanese yen, euro and certain
other Asian currencies. To protect against reductions in value
and the volatility of future cash flows caused by changes in for-
eign exchange rates, we have established programs to hedge our
exposure to these changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Our hedging programs reduce, but do not always eliminate,
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s 3 8 exchange rate movements. An
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effects of changes in exchange
NET PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
{DOLLARS IN MILLIONS)

rates, these changes typically
affect the volume of sales or the
foreign currency sales price as
competitors’ products become more or less attractive. Our sen-
sitivity analysis of the effects of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates does not factor in a potential change in sales
levels or local currency selling prices.

All of the potential changes noted above are based on sensi-
tivity analyses performed on our balances as of May 26, 2002.

LICUIDITY AMD CAPITAL RESOURCES

As of May 26, 2002, cash, cash equivalents and marketable debt
securities were $844.4 million, slightly down from $869.4 million
at May 27, 2001. Cash and cash equivalents decreased $136.5 mil-
lion in fiscal 2002 compared to increases of $39.0 million in fiscal
2001 and $360.1 million in fiscal 2000. We describe the primary
factors contributing to these changes below:

We generated cash from operating activities of $100.3 million
during fiscal 2002 compared to $488.2 million in fiscal 2001 and
$399.7 million in fiscal 2000. We generated cash from operating
activities in fiscal 2002 because the noncash components of our
net loss, primarily depreciation and amortization, were greater
than the reported net loss and the negative impact from changes
in working capital components. Decreases in accounts payable,
accrued expenses and other liabilities more than offset the posi-
tive effect to working capital from a decrease in inventories. For
fiscal 2001, operating cash was generated primarily from net
income adjusted for noncash expenses, which was partially offset
by a negative impact from changes in working capital compo-
nents. The negative impact from changes in working capital com-
ponents was softened as the decreases in accounts payable and

accrued liabilities were substantially offset by the positive effect
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to working capital from a decrease in receivables. For fiscal 2000,
net income adjusted for noncash items was negatively affected by
changes in working capital components primarily due to increas-
es in receivables and inventories.

Our investing activities used cash of $323.3 million in fiscal
2002, compared to $298.6 million used in fiscal 2001. In fiscal 2000
our investing activities generated cash of $207.5 million. Major uses
of cash in fiscal 2002 included investment in property, plant and
equipment of $138.0 million, net purchases of available-for-sale
securities of $111.5 million and the acquisitions of Fincitec Oy,
ARSmikro OU and Wireless Solutions Sweden AB for a total of
$42.1 million, net of cash acquired (See Note 4). Major uses of cash
in fiscal 2001 included investment in property, plant and equipment
of $239.5 million and the acquisitions of innoCOMM and Vivid for
a total of $99.1 million, net of cash acquired (See Note 4). In con-
trast, proceeds of $286.0 million, primarily from the sale of Fairchild
Semiconductor stock, and $75.0 million from the sale of the Cyrix
PC microprocessor business were the main contributors to cash
generated from our investing activities in fiscal 2000. This was par-
tially offset by our investment in property, plant and equipment of
$168.7 million in fiscal 2000,

Our financing activities generated cash of $86.5 million for fis-
cal 2002, while they used cash of $150.6 million in fiscal 2001 and
$247.1 million in fiscal 2000. The primary source of cash was from
the issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans in the
amount of $107.1 million in fiscal 2002, which was partially offset
by repayment of $20.6 million of our outstanding debt balances.
The primary use of cash in fiscal 2001 was for our repurchase of
8.3 million shares of common stock on the open market for $194.4
million. All of these shares were retired during fiscal 2001. This
more than offset cash inflow of $68.2 million from the issuance of
common stock under employee benefit plans. For fiscal 2000 the
primary use of cash was for the payment of $265.8 million to
redeem our 6.5 percent convertible subordinated notes. Other debt
repayment of $114.7 million was offset by proceeds of $133.4 mil-
lion from the issuance of common stock under employee benefits
plans during fiscal 2000.

Management foresees substantial cash outlays for plant and

equipment throughout fiscal 2003, with primary focus on new
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capabilities that support our target growth markets, as well as
improvements to provide more capacity in selected areas and
also better manufacturing efficiency and productivity. Based on
current economic conditions, the fiscal 2003 capital expendi-
ture level is expected to be higher than the fiscal 2002 level.
However, we will continue to manage capital expenditures con-
sistent with ongoing business conditions. We expect existing
cash and investment balances, together with existing lines of

credit, to be sufficient to finance capital investments planned

for fiscal 2003. Our cash and investment balances are depend-
ent on continued collection of customer receivables and the
ability to sell inventories. Although we have not experienced
major problems with our customer receivables, continued and
significant declines in overall economic conditions would prob-
ably impact sales and may lead to problems with customer
receivables. In addition, major declines in financial markets
would probably cause reductions in our cash equivalents and
marketable investments.

The following table provides a summary of the effect on liquidity and cash flows from our contractual obligations as of May 26, 2002:

FISCAL YEAR:
{IN MILLIONS) 2003
Contractual obligations:
Debt obligations $5.5
Noncancellable operating leases 16.5
Fairchild manufacturing agreement 20.0
Licensing agreements:
TSMC 32.0
Other 128
Total $86.8
Commercial Commitments:
Standby letrers of credit under
bank multicurrency agreement $18.6

RECEMTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTIMG STAMDARDS
At the beginning of fiscal 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,”
The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on
our financial statements as described in Note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements. We also adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” at the beginning of fiscal 2002. The impact
of adoption of this statement is described in Note 1 to the consoli-
dated financial statements.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued
SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations” and SFAS No. 143
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No. 141

’

requires that the purchase method of accounting be used for all
business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001, and eliminates
the use of the pooling-of-interests method. We adopted SFAS No.
141 in fiscal 2002 and applied its provisions to acquisitions closed
after June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial accounting
and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tan-
gible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. We

are currently analyzing this statement and have not yet determined
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its impact on our consolidated financial statements. This Statement
will be effective for our fiscal year 2003.

In October 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Boarcl
issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
of Long-Lived Assets,” which replaces SFAS No. 121, “Accounting
for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets
to Be Disposed Of.” Although SFAS No. 144 retains the basic
requirements of SFAS No. 121 regarding when and how to measure
an impairment loss, it provides additional implementation guid-
ance. SFAS No. 144 also supersedes the provisions of APB Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting Results of Operations,” pertaining to discontin-
ued operations. Separate reporting of a discontinued operation is
still required, but SFAS No. 144 expands the presentation to include
a component of an entity, rather than strictly 2 business segment.
We are currently analyzing this statement and have not yet deter-
mined its impact on our consolidated financial statements. This
statement will be effective for our fiscal year 2003.




In April 2002 the Financial
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rescinds SFAS No. 4, “Reporting
Gains and Losses from Extinguish-

ment of Debt.” Accordingly, gains
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dinary items unless the extinguish-
ment qualifies as an extraordinary
item under the criteria of APB No.
30. Gains or losses from extinguishment of debt that do not meet
the criteria of APB No. 30 will be reclassified to income from con-
tinuing operations in all prior periods presented. This statement
will be effective for our fiscal year 2003. We do not expect the
adoption of SFAS 145 to have a material impact on our financial
position or results of operations.

QUTLOOK

Rapid technological change and frequent introduction of new tech-
nology leading to more complex and more integrated products
characterize the semiconductor industry. The result is a cyclical
environment with short product life, price erosion and high sensi-
tivity to the overall business cycle. Substantial capital and R&D
investment are also required to support products and manufactur-
ing processes. As a result of these industry conditions, we have
experienced in the past and may experience in the future periodic
fluctuations in our operating results.

Although semiconductor market conditions for fiscal 2002 con-
tinued to be weak compared to that in fiscal 2001, we experienced
sequential quarterly growth in new orders in each of our fiscal 2002
quarters. The sequential improvement was driven by new orders
for our products that are aimed at wireless handsets, displays, note-

book computers and other electronic devices. Our 13-week backlog
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as we entered the first quarter of fiscal 2003 was greater than it was
at the beginning of the previous quarter. This was driven by a
strong pattern of new orders we saw in the second half of fiscal
2002. As order levels have improved, the aging of orders has
become more normalized as our customers place more orders fur-
ther out in time. Consequently, this affects the amount they place
in turns orders, which are orders received with delivery requested
in the same quarter. Based on our expectations of turns orders for
the quarter, our outlook is for first quarter fiscal 2003 sales to be
around the same level as in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, when
we reported sales of $419.5 million. Historically, sales in our first
quarter have usually been flat or down from the preceding fourth
quarter. Weekly orders in July compared to June have improved,
but the expected level of sales for the fiscal 2003 first quarter
remains dependent on receiving the anticipated turns orders in the
remaining August period. We also expect our gross margin per-
centage for the first quarter of fiscal 2003 to be comparable with
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002. Overall, we expect to remain prof-
itable for the first quarter of fiscal 2003.

In May 2002, we announced a plan to reposition our resources,
including a shift of more sales and marketing resources to the Asia
Pacific region to support growing opportunities in that region as
sales in the region grew to 44 percent of total sales in fiscal 2002
from 32 percent in fiscal 2001. If we are unsuccessful in growing
those market opportunities or if the economic environment in the
region declines, our future sales may be unfavorably affected.

Our focus is to continue to introduce new products, particu-
larly more highly integrated system-on-a-chip products and high-
er-margin analog products that are targeted towards wireless
handsets, displays, information appliances and information infra-
structure, If the development of new products is delayed or mar-
ket acceptance is below expectations, future gross margin may be
unfavorably affected.

The wireless handset market continues to be important to our
future growth plans. New integrated chipsets are being developed
to provide added dollar content in targeted entry-level handsets.
New products are also being developed to address new features
and functionality in handsets, such as color displays and image
capture. Due to high levels of competition, as well as complex
technological requirements, there is no assurance that we will
ultimately be successful in this targeted market. Although the num-
ber of wireless handsets sold worldwide is a large market, near-

term growth trends are highly uncertain and difficult to predict with
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accuracy. Delayed introduction of next-generation wireless base
stations also negatively impacts potential growth in the wireless
handset market. There is also uncertainty related to the standards
that ultimately will be adopted for the next-generation wireless
base stations. As a result, we remain cautious on near-term trends
in our wireless-related businesses.

We continue to hold numerous design wins for our highly inte-
grated information appliance products, but end-user adoption of
the various devices that utilize our products has been slower than
anticipated. A design win is when a customer has chosen our semi-
conductor product and designed it into their device. It is not yet
clear which form factors, specific customers’ products or customers’
business models will uliimately be successful in this emerging mar-
ket. Revenue for our information appliance products is dependent
on the outcome and the timing of product acceptance trends.

We believe that continued focused invesiment in research and
development, especially the timely development and market
acceptance of new products, is a key factor to our successful
growth and our ability to achieve strong financial performance. Our
product portfolio generally has short product life cycles. Successful
development and introduction of new products are critical to our
ability to maintain a competitive position in the marketplace. We
will continue to invest resources to develop new cores and inte-
grate those cores with our other capabilities to create system-on-a-
chip products that leverage our leading edge analog and
mixed-signal technology. We will also continue to prioritize our
investments by focusing on applications in the wireless handsets,
displays, information appliances and information infrastructure
markets, as well as in process technologies needed to support
those products. Given the uncertainty in the current economic cli-
mate, it is difficult to accurately predict at this time our financial
performance beyond the first quarter of fiscal 2003. Assuming no
significant improvement in the economy, we anticipate R&D spend-
ing for fiscal 2003 to be slightly higher than the fiscal 2002 level
driven by increased investments in our key focus areas. Overall
SG&A expense is expected to be slightly higher than the fiscal 2002
level due to higher payroll and employee costs, but we will con-

tinue to align our cost structure with current business conditions.

We have made and will continue to make strategic business
acquisitions or investments in order to gain access to key tech-
nologies that can augment our existing technical capability or
enable us to achieve faster time to market. These can involve risks
and uncertainties that may unfavorably impact our future financial
performance. We cannot assure you that we will be able to inte-
grate and develop acquired technologies as expected. If the tech-
nology is not developed in a timely manner, we may be
unsuccessful in penetrating target markets. With acquisition activi-
ty, there are risks that future operating results may be unfavorably
affected by certain acquisition related costs, such as but not limit-
ed to, in-process R&D charges and incremental R&D spending.

Because of significant international sales, we benefit overall
from a weaker dollar and are adversely affected by a stronger dol-
lar relative to major currencies worldwide. Changes in exchange
rates, and in particular a strengthening of the U.S. dollar, may unfa-
vorably affect our consolidated sales and operating resuits.
Although we attempt to manage short-term exposures to foreign
currency fluctuations, we cannot assure you that our risk manage-
ment activities will fully offset the adverse financial impact result-
ing from unfavorable movements in foreign exchange rates.

From time to time, we have received notices of tax assess-
ments from certain governments of countries in which we operate.
We cannot assure you that these governments or other government
entities will not serve future notices of assessments on us, or that
the amounts of such assessments and our failure to favorably
resolve such assessments would not have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition or results of operations. In addition, our
tax returns for certain years are under examination in the U.S.
While we believe we have sufficiently provided for all tax obliga-
tions, we cannot assure you that the ultimate outcome of the tax
examinations will not have a material adverse effect on our future
financial condition or results of operations.

The September terrorist attacks on the U.S. and subsequent
associated events have created additional uncertainty on the state
of the U.S. economy overall. Although we did not experience any
immediate direct adverse effect on our operations from the terror-
ist attacks, the longer-term and indirect consequences from this cat-
astrophic event are not yet known. There can be no assurance that
the economic and political climate will improve in the near future.
If the slow business conditions in the global economy continue or
become more severe, our future sales and operating results will be
negatively impacted.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

YEARS ENDED
IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOQUNTS

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term marketable investments
Receivables, less allowances of $37.8 in 2002 and $45.1 in 2001
Inventories
Deferred tax assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Long-term marketable debt securities
Long-term marketable equity securities
Goodwill
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS  EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock of $0.50 par value. Authorized 850,000,000 shares.
Issued and outstanding 180,361,609 in 2002 and 173,806,633 in 2001
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Unearned compensation
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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MAY 26, 2002

$ 6813
18.1
131.7
145.0
58.7
383

1,073.1

737.1
145.0

46.4
173.3
113.9

$2,288.8

$ 53
123.7
226.7

47.9

403.8

20.4
83.5

$ 561.7

$ 902
1.415.3
3105
(12.8)
(22.1)

$1,781.1
$2,288.8

MAY 27, 2001




Consolidated Statements of Operations

YEARS ENDED
IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS

Net sales
Operating costs and expenses:
Cost of sales
Research and development
Selling, general and administrative
Special items
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income (loss)
Interest income, net
Other income, net
Income (loss) before income taxes and extraordinary item
Income tax expense (benefit)
Income (loss) before extraordinary item
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt,
net of taxes of $0.4 million
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) before extraordinary item:
Basic
Diluted
Net income (loss):
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common and potential common
shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

See accompanving Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MAY 26, 2002

$1,494.8

941.4
441.0
260.9

9.3

1,652.6

(157.8)
21.3
13.1

(123.4)

(1.5)
(121.9)

s (121.9)|

$ (0.69)
$ (0.69)

$ (0.69)

$ (0.69)

171.5
171.5

MAY 27, 2001

$2,112.6

1,075.1
435.6
324.7

51.9

1,887.3

2253
52.0
29.8

307.1
61.4

245.7

§ 2457

$ 140
$ 130

$ 140

$ 130

1759
188.4

MAY 28, 2000

§2,139.9

1,154.9
380.1
309.4
(55.3)

1,795.1
344.8

15.3
282.4
642.5

14.9
627.6

6.8
$ 6208

$ 3062
$ 327

S 358
$ 324

173.6
191.7
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive income (Loss)

YEARS ENDED MAY 26, 2002
IN MILLIONS
Net income (loss) $(121.9)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities 32.6
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain included in
net income (loss) {3.4)
Minimum pension liability (12.7)
Derivative instruments:
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges {0.4)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 10.1
Comprehensive income (10ss) $(111.8)

The tax effects of other comprehensive income (loss) components included in each of the years presented above were not significant.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MAY 27, 2001

$245.7

32.6
(21.3)

(16.0)

4.7)
$241.0

MAY 28, 2000

$ 620.8

206.0

(224.6)
6.2)

~
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@
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Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

ACCUMULATED
ADDITIONAL RETAINED OTHER
COMMON PAID-IN EARNINGS UNEARNED COMPREHENSIVE
IN MILLIONS STOCK CAPITAL {DEFICITH COMPENSATION LOSS TOTAL
Balances at May 30, 1999 $84.5 $1,268.1 $(434.1) $(15.0) $2.7 $ 900.8
Net income - ~ 620.8 - - 620.8
Issuance of common stock under option,
purchase, and profit sharing plans 4.1 130.6 - - - 134.7
Unearned compensation relating
to issuance of restricted stock 0.1 8.2 - 8.3 - -
Cancellation of restricted stock - 6.0) - 27 - (3.3
Amortization of unearned compensation - - - 8.0 - 8.0
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of
a convertible subordinated promissory note 0.1 7.0 - - - 7.1
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (24.9) (24.8)
Balances at May 28, 2000 888 1,407.9 186.7 12.6) 27.5) 1,643.3
Net income - - 2457 - - 2457
Issuance of common stock under option,
purchase, and profit sharing plans 22 70.0 - - - 72.2
Unearned compensation relating
to issuance of restricted stock 0.1 7.4 - @3 - -
Cancellation of restricted stock - 2.8) - 2.0 - 08
Amortization of unearned compensation - - - 4.2 - 4.2
Proceeds from sale of put warrants - 0.4 - - - 0.4
Stock compensation charge - 2.0 - - - 2.0
Purchase and retirement of treasury stock 4.2) (190.2) - - - (194.4)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - G, (4.7)
Balances at May 27, 2001 86.9 1,294.7 4324 a3o» (32.2) 1,767.9
Net loss - - (121.9) - - (121.9
Issuance of common stock under option,
purchase, and profit sharing plans 3.0 108.6 - - - 111.6
Unearned compensation relating
to issuance of restricted stock - 3.1 - 3.1 - -
Cancellation of restricted stock - ©.» - 0.8 - ©.D
Amortization of unearned compensation - - - 34 - 3.4
Stock compensation charge - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Issuance of common stock upon conversion
of convertible subordinated promissory notes 0.3 9.7 - - - 10.0
Other comprehensive income - - - - 101 10.1
Balances at May 26, 2002 £90.2 $1,415.3 $ 310.5 $(12.8) $(22.1 $1,781.1

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEARS ENDED
IN MILLIONS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
with net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on investments
Loss on disposal of equipment
Donation of equity securities
Deferred tax provision
Noncash special items
Other, net
Changes in certain assets and liabilities, net:

Receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Income taxes payable
Other noncurrent liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sale of equipment

Sale and maturity of available-for—sale securities
Purchase of available-for-sale securities
Disposition of Cyrix PC microprocessor business
Sale of investments

Purchase of nonmarketable investments, net
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Funding of benefit plan

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used by) investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANMCING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of convertible subordinated notes
Repayment of debt

Issuance of common stock, net

Purchase and retirement of treasury stock

Net cash provided by (used by) financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financia Statements
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MAY 26, 2002

$(121.9)

230.4
(s.4)
44

18.0
{2.3)
0.2

(6.4)
51.0

(32.9)
(5.2)

(25.6)

100.3

(138.0)
88.6
(200.1)
11.2
(26.3)
(42.1)
{14.9)
(1.7)
(323.3)

(20.6)
107.1

86.5

(136.5)

817.8
$681.3 |

MAY 27, 2001

$245.7

2433
(30.6)
31
205
27.6
21.9
0.3

135.2
(2.6)
0.8
(138.9)
(33.7)
(4.4)
488.2

(239.5)
482
28.0)
34,8
(14.9)
(99.1)
2.4
2.3
(298.6)

(24.9)
68.2

(194.4)

(150.6)

39.0
778.8
$817.8

MAY 28, 2000

$ 620.8

(55.3)
16

(86.7)
G7.0
(8.3)
©.7)
9.0
(5.8)
399.7

(168.7)
8.6
151.2
as.n
75.0
286.0
83
222
1
207,

N

N

(265.8)
(114.7)
133.4

247.D

360.1
418.7
$ 778.8




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

MOTE

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

BASIS OF PRESENTATION
The consolidated financial statements include National Semiconductor
Corporation and our majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-
company transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday of May. The fiscal years
ended May 26, 2002, May 27, 2001 and May 28, 2000 were all 52-
week years.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

We recognize revenue from the sale of semiconductor products
upon shipment, provided title and risk of loss has passed to the
customer, the fee is fixed or determinable and collection of the rev-
enue is reasonably assured. We record at the time of shipment a
provision for estimated future returns. Approximately 47 percent of
our semiconductor product sales are sold through distributors. We
have agreements with our distributors for various programs, includ-
ing pricing adjustments based on resales, scrap allowances and vol-
ume incentives. The revenue we record for these distribution sales
is net of the estimated provisions for these programs. Service rev-
enues are recognized as the services are provided or as milestones
are achieved, depending on the terms of the arrangement.
Intellectual property income is not classified as revenue. This
income is classified as non-operating income and is recognized
when the license is delivered, collection is reasonably assured and
no further obligations to the other party exist.

INVENTORLIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approx-
imates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis, or market. We reduce
the carrying value of inventory for estimated obsolescence or
unmarketable inventory by an amount that is the difference
between its cost and the estimated market value based upon

assumptions about future demand and market conditions.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost. We use the
straight-line method to depreciate machinery and equipment over their
estimated useful life (3-5 years). Buildings and improvements are
depreciated using both straight-line and declining-balance methods
over the assets’ remaining estimated useful life (3-50 years), or, in the
case of leasehold improvements, over the lesser of the estimated use-
ful life or lease term.

We capitalize eligible costs to acquire or develop software
used internally. We use the straight-line method to amortize soft-
ware used internally over its estimated useful life (3-5 years).
Effective May 26, 2002, and for all years presented, we reclassified
software used internally to property, plant and equipment. Prior to
this, we had classified software used internally on the consolidated
balance sheets in other assets.

We review the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
for impairment whenever events and circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated
future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposi-
tion. If our estimate of future undiscounted net cash flows is insuffi-
cient to recover the carrying value of the assets over the estimated
useful life, we will record an impairment loss in the amount by which

the carrying value of the assets exceeds the fair value.

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of identifiable net tangible and intangible assets acquired in
a business combination. We adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets,” and discontinued amortizing goodwill as
of the beginning of fiscal 2002. Instead we evaluate goodwill for
impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in
circumstance suggest that it is more likely than not that an impair-
ment loss has been incurred.

Upon adoption of this financial standard, we established
reporting units based on operating segments as defined by our cur-
rent segment reporting structure and assigned all existing goodwill
to the reporting units. As of May 26, 2002, we have four reporting
units that contain goodwill. During fiscal 2002, we evaluated good-
will impairment as of the date of adoption and in our fourth fiscal
quarter, which has been selected as the period for our recurring
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annual evaluation for all reporting units. In each evaluation, we
completed the first step of the goodwill impairment test and deter-
mined that no potential impairment existed. As a result, we did not

recognize a transitional or other impairment loss in fiscal 2002,

INCOME TAXES

We determine deferred tax liabilities and assets at the end of each
period based on the future tax consequences that can be attributed
to net operating loss and credit carryovers and differences between
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabil-
ities and their respective tax bases, using the tax rate expected to
be in effect when the taxes are actually paid or recovered. The
recognition of deferred tax assets is reduced by a valuation
allowance if it is more likely than not that the tax benefits will not

be realized.

EARNMINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE
We compute basic earnings (loss) per share using the weighted-aver-
age number of common shares outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss)
per share are computed using the weighted-average common shares
outstanding after giving effect to potential common shares from stock
options based on the treasury stock method, plus other potentially
dilutive securities outstanding, such as convertible subordinated notes.
For all years presented, the reported net income (loss) was used
in our computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share. A

reconciliation of the shares used in the computation follows:

YEARS ENDED MAY 28, MAY 27, MAY 28,
(IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001 2000

Weighted-average common
shares outstanding used for

basic earnings (loss) per share 177.5 175.9 173.6
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options - 12,5 18.1

Weighted-average common and
potential common shares
outstanding used for diluted
earnings (loss) per share 172.5 188.4 191.7
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As of May 26, 2002, we had options outstanding to purchase

36.9 million shares of common stock with a weighted-average
exercise price of $28.24, which were excluded from the fiscal 2002
computation of diluted earnings per share because their effect was
antidilutive. These options could potentially dilute the computation
of earnings per share in the future. As of May 27, 2001, we had
options outstanding to purchase 10.0 million shares of common
stock with a weighted-average exercise price of $53.58, which were
excluded from the fiscal 2001 computation of diluted earnings per
share because their effect was antidilutive. As of May 28, 2000, we
had options outstanding to purchase 8.4 million shares of common
stock with a weighted-average exercise price of $59.49, which were
excluded from the fiscal 2000 computation of diluted earnings per

share because their effect was antidilutive.

CURRENCIES

The functional currency for all operations worldwide is the U.S.
dollar. We include gains and losses arising from translation of for-
eign currency financial statement balances into U.S. dollars in cur-
rent earnings. We also include gains and losses resulting from

foreign currency transactions in current earnings.

FINANGIAL INSTRUMENTS
Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
instruments with a remaining maturity of three months or less at the
time of purchase. We maintain cash balances in various currencies
and in a variety of financial instruments. We have not experienced
any material losses related to any short-term financial instruments.
Marketable Investments. Debt and marketable equity securi-
ties are classified into held-to-maturity or available-for-sale cate-
gories. Debt securities are classified as held-to-maturity when we
have the positive intent and ability to hold the securities to matu-
rity. We record held-to-maturity securities, which are stated at
amortized cost, as either short-term or long-term on the balance
sheet based upon contractual maturity date. Debt and marketable
equity securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as
available-for-sale and are carried at fair market value, with the
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in shareholders’
equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.
Gains or losses on securities sold are based on the specific iden-

tification method.




Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nonmarketable investments. We have investments in non-
publicly traded companies as a result of various strategic business
ventures. These nonmarketable investments are included on the
balance sheet in other assets. For nonmarketable investments in
which we have less than 20 percent voting interest and where we
do not have the ability to exercise significant influence or control,
we record them at cost and periodically review them for impair-
ment. For nonmarketable investments in which we do have the
ability to exercise significant influence, but do not hold a con-
trolling interest, we record them using the equity method. Under
the equity method we record our proportionate share of income
or loss from these investments in nonoperating income based on
our share of voting interest in the investment.

Derivative Financial Instruments. As part of our risk man-
agement strategy we use derivative financial instruments, includ-
ing forwards, swaps and purchased options, to hedge certain
foreign currency and interest rate exposures. Our intent is to off-
set gains and losses that occur from our underlying exposure with
gains and losses on the derivative contracts used to hedge them.
As a matter of company policy, we do not enter into speculative
positions with derivative instruments. The criteria we use for des-
ignating an instrument as a hedge include the instrument’s effec-
tiveness in risk reduction and direct matching of the financial
instrument to the underlying transaction.

At the beginning of fiscal 2002, we adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by
SFAS No. 138, “Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and
Certain Hedging Activities.” SFAS No. 133 requires companies to
record derivatives on the balance sheet as assets or liabilities
measured at fair value. We record all derivatives on the balance
sheet at fair value. Gains or losses resulting from changes in the
values of these derivatives are accounted for based on the use of
the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. The
cumulative effect of adoption of this statement was immaterial to
both our financial position and results of operations. See Note 2
to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a full description of
our hedging activities and related accounting policies.

FAIR YALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investments, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued
expenses approximate their fair values due to the short period of
time until their maturity. Fair values of long-term investments, long-
term debt, interest rate derivatives, currency forward contracts and
currency options are based on quoted market prices or pricing
models using prevailing financial market information as of May 26,
2002. The estimated fair value of debt was $26.8 million at May 26,
2002. See Note 2 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements for fair

values of marketable securities and derivative financial instruments.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PLANS

We account for our stock option plans and our employee stock
purchase plans in accordance with the intrinsic method of
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees.”

USE OF ESTIMATES IN PREPARATION

OF FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America requires us to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the dis-
closure of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.
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RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in prior years’ consolidated financial statements
and notes to consolidated financial statements have been reclassi-
fied to conform to the fiscal 2002 presentation. Net operating results

have not been affected by these reclassifications.

NOTE

Financial Instruments

MARKETABLE INVESTMENTS

Our policy is to diversify our investment portfolio to reduce risk
to principal that could arise from credit, geographic and invest-
ment sector risk. At May 26, 2002, investments were placed with
a variety of different financial institutions and other issuers.
Investments with a maturity of less than one year have a rating
of A1/P1 or better. Investments with a maturity of more than one
year have a minimum rating of AA/Aa2.

At May 26, 2002, we held $17.7 million of available-for-sale
securities and $605.5 million of held-to-marturity securities,
which are classified as cash equivalents on the consolidated bal-
ance sheet. These cash equivalents consist of the following (in
millions): bank time deposits ($178.0), institutional money mar-
ket funds ($167.0) and commercial paper ($278.2).

At May 27, 2001, we held $48.7 million of available-for-sale
securities and $723.2 million of held-to-maturity securities, which
are classified as cash equivalents on the consolidated balance
sheet. These cash equivalents consist of the following (in mil-
lions): bank time deposits (§193.3), institutional money market
funds ($105.1) and commercial paper ($473.5).
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Marketable investments at fiscal year-end comprised:

GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED
{IN MILLIONS) cosT GAINS LOSSES

ESTIMATED
FAIR VALUE

2002

SHORT-TERM MARKETABLE

INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale securities:
Corporate notes

Total short-term
marketable investments

oy
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$ 181

LONG-TERWM MARKETABLE
INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
Government
debt securities $144.5 s 0
Equity securities 8.8 3
Total long-term
marketable investments

§ - $145.0
46.4

O N
—
w
~

o
W
=N

$153.3 $(1.3) $191.4

2001

SHORT-TERM MARKETABLE
INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale securities:

Certificates of deposit $ 50 $ - $ - § 50
Total short-term
marketable investments  § 5.0 § - $ - $ 50
LONG-TERM MARKETABLE
INVESTMENTS
Available-for-sale securities:
Debt securities:
Government
debt securities $ 14.0 $ 0.1 § - $ 14.1
Corporate notes 32.0 _ 05 I 32.5
46.0 0.6 - 46.6
Equity securities 4.1 154 Q.o 18.5
Total long-term
marketable investments  $ 50.1 $16.0 $1.0) $ 65.1

Net unrealized gains on available-for-sale securities of $38.2
million at May 27, 2002 and $15.0 million at May 27, 2001 are
included in accumulated other comprehensive loss. The related tax

effects are not significant.




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Scheduled maturities of investments in debt securities were:

{14 MILLIONS)

2003 $ 18.1
2004 15.0
2005 130.0
Total $163.1

Gross realized gains on available-for-sale securities were $8.1
million, $25.5 million and $224.6 million for fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively. We realized impairment losses for other than
temporary declines in fair value of available-for-sale securities in fis-
cal 2002 of $0.2 million and in fiscal 2001 of $4.2 million. Gross real-
ized losses on available-for-sale securities were not material for
fiscal 2000. We recognized gross realized gains from nonmarketable
investments of $1.5 million, $22.4 million and $48.4 million in fiscal
2002, 2001 and 2000, respectively. These gains come primarily from
the sale of shares in connection with initial public offerings and
acquisitions by third parties. Although we recognized $12.7 million
of gross impairment losses on nonmarketable investments in fiscal

2001, no such losses were recognized in either fiscal 2002 or 2000.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMERNTS

The objective of our foreign exchange risk management policy is
to preserve the U.S. dollar value of after-tax cash inflow in relation
to non-U.S. dollar currency movements. We are exposed to foreign
currency exchange rate risk that is inherent in orders, sales, cost of
sales, expenses and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the U.S. dollar. We enter into foreign exchange contracts,
primarily forwards and purchased options, to hedge against expo-
sure to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. These contracts
are matched at inception to the related foreign currency exposures
that are being hedged. Exposures which are hedged include sales
by subsidiaries, and assets and liabilities denominated in currencies
other than the U.S. dollar. Our foreign currency hedges typically
mature within one year.

We measure hedge effectiveness for foreign currency forward
contracts by comparing the cumulative change in the hedge con-
tract with the cumulative change in the hedged item, both of which
are based on forward rates. For purchased options, we measure
hedge effectiveness by the change in the option’s intrinsic value,
which represents the change in the forward rate relative to the
option’s strike price. Any changes in the time value of the option
are excluded from the assessment of effectiveness of the hedge and
recognized in current earnings.

We designate derivative instruments that are used to hedge
exposures to variability in expected future foreign denominated
cash flows as cash flow hedges. We record the effective portion of
the gains or losses on the derivative instrument in accumulated
other comprehensive loss as a separate component of shareholders’
equity and reclassify amounts into earnings in the period when the
hedged transaction affects earnings. Derivative instruments that we
use to hedge exposures to reduce or eliminate changes in the fair
value of an asset or liability denominated in foreign currency are
designated as fair value hedges. The gain or loss on the derivative
instrument, as well as the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk, is included in selling, general and
administrative expenses. '

We are also exposed to variable cash flow that is inherent in
our variable-rate debt. We use an interest rate swap to convert the
variable interest payments to fixed interest payments. We designate
this derivative as a cash flow hedge. For interest rate swaps, the
critical terms of the interest rate swap and hedged item are
designed to match up, enabling us to assume effectiveness under
SFAS No. 133, We recognize amounts as interest expense as cash
settlements are paid or received.

We report hedge ineffectiveness from foreign currency deriva-
tives for both forward contracts and options in current earnings. We
also report ineffectiveness related to interest rate swaps in current
earnings. Hedge ineffectiveness was not material for fiscal 2002. No
cash flow hedges were terminated as a result of forecasted trans-
actions that did not occur. The effective portion of all changes in
derivatives is reported in the same financial statement line item as

the changes in the hedged item.
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At May 26, 2002, the estimated net amount of existing gains
or losses from cash flow hedges expected to be reclassified into
earnings within the next year was $0.4 million. For fiscal 2002, net
realized losses recognized from cash flow hedges were $0.2 million

and fair value hedges were $0.5 million.

FAIR VALUE AND MOTIONAL PRINCIPAL

OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows the fair value and notional principal of
derivative financial instruments as of May 26, 2002 and May 27,
2001. The notional principal amounts for derivative financial
instruments provide one measure of the transaction volume out-
standing as of vear-end and do not represent the amount of the
exposure to credit or market loss. The estimates of fair value are
based on applicable and commonly used pricing models using
prevailing financial market information as of May 26, 2002 and
May 27, 2001. The fair value of interest rate swap agreements rep-
resents the estimated amount we would receive or pay to termi-
nate the agreements taking into consideration current interest
rates. The fair value of forward foreign currency exchange con-
tracts represents the present value difference between the stated
forward contract rate and the current market forward rate at set-
tlement. The fair value of foreign currency option contracts repre-
sents the probable weighted net amount we would expect to
receive at maturity. The credit risk amount shown in the table rep-
resents the gross exposure to potential accounting loss on these
transactions if all counterparties failed to perform according to the
terms of the contract, based on the then-current currency
exchange rate or interest rate at each respective date. Aithough the
following table reflects the notional principal, fair value and cred-
it risk amounts of the derivative financial instruments, it does not
reflect the gains or losses associated with the exposures and trans-
actions that the derivative financial instruments are intended to
hedge. The amounts ultimately realized upon settlement of these
financial instruments, together with the gains and losses on the
underlying exposures, will depend on actual market conditions

during the remaining life of the instruments.
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CARRYING NOTIONAL  ESTIMATED CREOIT
(IN MILLIONS) AMOUNT  PRINCIPAL  FAIR VALUE RISK
2002
INTEREST RATE INSTRUMENTS
Swaps:
Variable to fixed § - $18.2 $ - s -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE
INSTRUMENTS
Forward contracts:
To sell dollars:
Pound sterling S 0.1 $ 6.5 $0.1 $0.1
Singapore dollar - 44 ~ 01 0.1
Toal 501 S0 502 302
Purchased options:
Japanese yen $ - $23.0 § - $ -
2001
INTEREST RATE INSTRUMENTS
Swaps:
Variable to fixed A $19.4 § - $ -
FOREIGN EXCHANGE
INSTRUMENTS
Forward contracts:
To buy dollars:
Japanese yen $ - $ 31 § - § -
To sell dollars:
Pound sterling $0.3) $16.0 $(0.9 § -
Singapore dollar (0.2) 9.7 0.2 -
Total $(0.5) $25.7 $(0.6) $ -
Purchased options:
Japanese yen $0.1 $18.0 $0.2 $0.2
Other - 45 = =
Total 50.1 $22.5 502 $0.2

CONCEMNTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that may subject us to concentrations of cred-
it risk are primarily investments and trade receivables. Our invest-
ment policy requires cash investments to be placed with high-credit
quality counterparties and limits the amount of investments with
any one financial institution or direct issuer. We sell our products
to distributors and original equipment manufacturers involved in a
variety of industries including computers and peripherals, wireless
communications, automotive and networking. We perform contin-
uing credit evaluations of our customers whenever necessary and
we generally do not require collateral. Our top ten customers com-
bined represented approximately 38 percent of total accounts
receivable at May 26, 2002, and approximately 27 percent at May
27, 2001. One of our distributors accounted for approximately 10

percent of total net sales in fiscal 2002 as a result of its acquisition
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of another distributor located in Europe. No one customer or dis-
tributor accounted for 10 percent or more of total net sales in fiscal
2001 and 2000. Historically, we have not experienced significant
losses related to receivables from individual customers or groups of

customers in any particular industry or geographic area.

MOTE

Cost Reduction Programs and
Restructuring of Operations

FISCAL 2002

Included as a component of special items in the consolidated state-
ment of operations for fiscal 2002, we reported a net charge of $8.0
million related to the actions described below:

In May 2002, we announced a plan to reposition our resources
and reduce costs. The plan scales back efforts in some wireless net-
working technologies, such as the IEEE 802.11 technology standard,
and narrows investment in the set-top box portion of our information
appliance business. We will also reallocate investment to support our
growing opportunities in the wireless handset and flat-panel display
markets, and our broadening capability in the analog power man-
agement area. We are also shifting more sales and marketing
resources to Asia Pacific to support growth in that region. The plan
resulted in a net reduction of approximately 150 positions from our
global workforce, which is expected to be completed prior to the end
of fiscal 2003. In connection with these actions, we recorded a charge
of $12.5 million. The charge includes $8.5 million for severance, $3.2
million for other exit related costs and $0.8 million for the write-off of
equipment related to activity that was eliminated as part of the repo-
sitioning. Other exit costs primarily represent facility lease obligations
related to closure of sales offices and design centers. Noncash charges
related to write-off of equipment. The total charge was partially offset
by a credit of $4.5 million of remaining reserves that were no longer
needed for previously announced actions because the activities were

completed in fiscal 2002 at a lower cost than originally estimated.

FISCAL 2001

Included as a component of special items in the consolidated
statement of operations for fiscal 2001, we reported a net charge of
$35.7 million comprised of the items described below:

In May 2001, we announced a cost-reduction program that
included the elimination of approximately 790 positions worldwide.
This action was taken due to continued weakness in the semicon-
ductor industry experienced during the second half of fiscal 2001. As
a result, we recorded a net charge of $33.4 million. The charge includ-
ed $25.5 million for severance, $4.2 million for other exit related costs
and $4.8 million for the write-off of equipment related to activity that
was eliminated as part of the cost-reduction program. The charge was
partially offset by a credit of $1.1 million of residual restructure
reserves for activities that were completed in fiscal 2001. The noncash
portion totaled $6.8 million, consisting of the write-off of equipment
and $2.0 million for noncash severance relating to stock options.

In August 2000, we recorded a $2.3 million restructure charge in
connection with the consolidation of the wafer manufacturing oper-
ations in Greenock, Scotland. This charge represented additional sev-
erance costs associated with the termination of certain remaining
employees who were originally scheduled to depart the company
upon final closure of the 4-inch wafer fabrication facility. The closure
of the 4-inch wafer fabrication facility and the transfer of products
and processes to the 6-inch wafer fabrication facility on the same site

were substantially completed by the end of September 2000.

FISCAL 2000

Included as a component of special items in the consolidated state-
ment of operations for fiscal 2000, we reported a $14.7 million
credit from restructuring of operations related to the actions
described below:

For all activities related to restructuring actions we
announced in May 1999 that were substantially completed during
fiscal 2000, we recorded a credit of $9.0 million for severance and
other exit-related costs for which reserves were no longer
required. The May 1999 actions included our decision to exit the
Cyrix PC microprocessor business, the elimination of approxi-
mately 1,126 positions worldwide and the closure of the 8-inch
development wafer fabrication facility in Santa Clara, California.
In connection with the closure of the Santa Clara wafer fabrica-
tion facility, we also recorded a credit of $2.6 million from the
final disposition of related equipment.

In September 1999, we completed the sale of the assets of the
Cyrix PC microprocessor business to VIA Technologies. The sale
included the MII x86 compatible microprocessor and successor
products. We retained the integrated Media GX microprocessor,
which forms the core of the Geode™ family of solutions for the
information appliance market. Assets sold included inventories,
land, buildings and equipment, primarily located in Richardson,
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Texas; Arlington, Texas; Mesa, Arizona; and Santa Clara, California.
Some PC microprocessor-related manufacturing assets in Toa
Payoh, Singapore were also included. Proceeds from this transac-
tion were $75.0 million, of which $8.2 million represented reim-
bursement to us for certain employee retention costs incurred
solely as a result of completing the sale. The remaining $66.8 mil-
lion represented payment for the assets sold. We recorded a gain
of $26.8 million on the sale.

In September 1999, we also announced we would retain full
ownership of our semiconductor manufacturing facility in
Greenock and ceased our efforts originally announced in October
1998 to seek an investor to acquire and operate that facility as an
independent foundry business. As a result, we recorded a credit of
$3.1 million from the reduction of the restructure reserve related to
a penalty that would no longer be incurred.

The following table provides a summary of the activities
related to our cost reduction and restructuring actions includ-
ed in accrued liabilities for the years ended May 26, 2002 and
May 27, 2001

{IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001
Beginning balance $30.3 §19.1
Cash payments (20.8) 17.7
Cost reduction program charges 11.7 30.0
Credit for residual reserves . {4.8) an
Ending balance $16.4 $30.3

During fiscal 2002, we paid severance of $14.6 million to 473
employees in connection with the cost reduction action announced
in May 2001, We also paid $6.2 million for other exit-related costs
during fiscal 2002. Those costs were primarily associated with
restructuring actions we originally announced in fiscal 1999. As of
May 26, 2002, no amounts had yet been paid in connection with

the actions announced in May 2002,

NOTE

Acquisitions

FISCAL 2002

In April 2002, we acquired the Finnish company Fincitec Oy and
ARSmikro OU, based in Estonia. These two related companies
develop low-voltage, low-power application specific integrated
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circuits for battery-powered devices. We expect this acquisition to

strengthen our development capabilities for power management
circuits for the portable market and to expand our suite of inte-
grated and discrete silicon solutions for handheld devices, includ-
ing cell phones, personal digital assistants, digital cameras and
similar electronic devices. The acquisition was accounted for using
the purchase method with a purchase price of $15.6 million for all
of the outstanding shares of the combined companies’ common
stock. In connection with the acquisition, we recorded a $0.2 mil-
lion in-process research and development charge, which is includ-
ed as a component of special items in the consolidated statement
of operations for fiscal 2002, The remainder of the purchase price
was allocated to net assets of $1.0 million, intangible assets of $0.8
million and goodwill of $13.6 million based on fair values.

In June 2001, we acquired Wireless Solutions Sweden AB, a
leading developer of wireless solutions ranging from telemetry to
mobile phones to wireless networking, including Bluetooth. This
acquisition was intended to help us deliver complete wireless ref-
erence designs, including silicon chipsets, hardware and software.
The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method with
a purchase price of $27.7 million for all of the outstanding shares
of Wireless Solutions common stock. In connection with the acqui-
sition, we recorded a $1.1 million in-process research and devel-
opment charge, which is included as a component of special items
in the consolidated statement of operations for fiscal 2002. The
remainder of the purchase price was allocated to net liabilities of
$1.0 million and goodwill of $27.6 million based on fair values.

FISCAL 2001

In February 2001, we acquired innoComm Wireless, a developer of
chipsets for wireless networking applications based in San Diego,
California. InnoComm’s expertise ranges from short-range wireless
technologies, such as Bluetooth and HomeREF, to full wireless local
area networking based on the IEEE 802.11 standard, which allows
interoperability for wireless LANs similar to how ethernet allows
interoperability of wired LANs, and the acquisition was intended to
complement our existing base of design and product expertise.
The acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method with
a purchase price of $118.8 million. Of the total purchase price,
$74.3 million was paid in cash upon the closing of the transaction.
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A liability of $44.5 million was recorded, primarily representing
two installments to be paid twelve and twenty-four months after
the closing date. In connection with the acquisition, we recorded
a $12.1 million in-process research and development charge,
which is included as a component of special items in the consoli-
dated statement of operations for fiscal 2001. The remainder of the
purchase price was allocated to net assets of $0.2 million and
intangible assets of $106.5 million based on fair values. The intan-
gible assets consist primarily of goodwill. Under terms of employ-
ee retention arrangements, we also expect to pay a total of
approximately $18.3 million to innoComm employees upon the
completion of their first and second year service anniversaries.
These amounts are being charged ratably to operations over the
related service periods.

In July 2000, we acquired the business and assets of Vivid
Semiconductor, a semiconductor company based in Chandler,
Arizona. Vivid’s technologies and analog engineering resources are
expected to ekpand our strengths in creating silicon solutions for
the flat-panel display market. The acquisition was accounted for
using the purchase method with a purchase price of $25.1 million
in cash. In connection with the acquisition, we recorded a $4.1 mil-
lion in-process research and development charge, which is includ-
ed as a component of special items in the consolidated statement
of operations for fiscal 2001. The remainder of the purchase price
was allocated to net assets of §$1.3 million and intangible assets of
$19.7 million based on fair values. The intangible assets consist pri-
marily of goodwill.

FISCAL 2000
In December 1999, we acquired Algorex, a provider of high per-
formance digital signal processing products, architecture and soft-
ware technologies for the wireless communication markets. These
technologies should enhance our future capability to provide com-
plete chipset solutions for the cellular phone and wireless informa-
tion appliance markets. The acquisition was accounted for using
the purchase method with a purchase price of $21.5 million. In
connection with the acquisition, we recorded a $4.2 million in-
process research and development charge, which is included as a
component of special items in the consolidated statement of oper-
ations for fiscal 2000. The remainder of the purchase price was allo-
cated primarily to goodwill.

The amount allocated to the in-process research and develop-
ment charge for each of these acquisitions was determined through

an established valuation technique used in the high technology

industry. The research and development charge was expensed
upon acquisition because technological feasibility had not been
established and no alternative uses exist. The costs of research and
development to bring the products to technological feasibility are
not expected to have a material impact on future operating results.

Pro forma results of operations related to these acquisitions
have not been presented, since results of their operations were

immaterial in relation to National.

NOTE

Consolidated Financial Statement Details

{IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001

RECEIVABLE ALLOWARNCES
Doubtful accounts $ 715 S 7.3
Returns and allowances 30.3
Total receivable allowances $ 378 S 451

INVENTORIES

Raw materials $ 64 $ 81
Work in process 86.9 113.8
Finished goods 51.7 73.6

Total inventories $ 1450 S 195.5

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land $ 233 $ 217
Buildings and improvements 524.2 520.6
Machinery and equipment 1,774.1 1,778.1
Internal-use software 87.5 86.9
Construction in progress 47.8 98.7
Total property, plant and equipment 2,456.9 2,506.0
Less accumulated depreciation

and amortization 1,719.8 1,673.2
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 7374 $ 8328

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Payroll and employee related

Cost reduction charges and
restructuring of operations 16.4 30.3

Other 94.7 108.9

Total accrued expenses $ 226.7 $ 262.9

$ 1156 $ 1237

ACCUMULATED OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities § 382 $ 150

Minimum pension liability {59.9) (47.2)
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges 0.4) —
$ (221)] § (2.2
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NOTE

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for fiscal 2002 are

as follows (in millions):

(IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001 2000
SPECIAL ITEMS - INCOME (EXPENSE)
Cost reduction charges and

restructuring of operations $(8.0) $(35.7) $14.7
In-process research and

development charge (1.3) (16.2) 4.2)
Gain on disposition of Cyrix PC

microprocessor business - - 26.8
Other -1 - _18.0

$(9.3) $(51.9) $55.3

For fiscal 2000 special items, a credit to reduce the excess por-
tion of a contingent liability related to an indemnity agreement with
Fairchild Semiconductor that expired in March 2000 is included in
Other. The agreement was connected with the disposition of the
Fairchild business in fiscal 1997.

ANALOG ALL

SEGMENT OTHERS TOTAL
Balances at May 27, 2001 $130.4 $§1.7 $132.1
Goodwill acquired during fiscal 2002 41.2 = 41.2
Balances at May 26, 2002 $171.6 $1.7 $173.3

Orther intangible assets, which are included in other assets on
the consolidated balance sheet, will continue to be amortized and

consist of the following (in millions):

{IN MILLIONS] 2002 2001 2000
INTEREST INCOME, NET

Interest income $25.2 $57.3 $ 33.2
Interest expense (3.9) _(5.3) (17.9)
Interest income, net §21.3 $32.0 $ 153
OTHER INCOME, MET

Net intellectual property income $11.6 $ 6.3 $ 115
Gain on investments, net 2.1 235 269.6
Other (0.6) - 13
Total other income, net $13.1 $29.8 52824

Beginning in fiscal 2002, equity in losses of investments
accounted for under the equity method is included in gain (loss)
on investments, net. The presentation of $3.8 million in fiscal
2001 and $2.9 million in fiscal 2000 of such losses previously
reported in selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal
2001 and 2000, respectively, has been re-characterized to con-

form to this classification.
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WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
AMORTIZATION
MAY 26, PERIOD
2002 (YEARS)
Patents $4.9 5.0
Unpatented technology 0.8 2.4
5.7
Less accumulated
amortization 1.7
$4.0 4.6

<o
[eo]

s
o+
i

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE
AMORTIZATION
PERIOD
{YEARS)

5.0

We expect annual amortization expense to be (in millions):

2003
2004
2005
2006

Annual amortization expense was (in millions):

Goodwill amortization
Patent and technology amortization
Total amortization

2001

$13.0
08
$13.8
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Adjusted net income (loss) and net income (loss) per share
exclusive of amortization expense was (in millions, except per
share amounts):

2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) — as reported $(121.9) $245.7 $620.8
Add back:

Goodwill amortization - 13.0 5.3
Net income (loss) — adjusted $(121.9) $258.7 $626.1
Basic earnings (loss) per share —

as reported $ (0.69) S 1.40 $ 358
Add back:

Goodwill amortization - 0.07 0.03
Basic earnings (loss) per share —

adjusted $ (0.69) $ 1.47 $ 3.61
Diluted earnings (loss) per share —

as reported $ (0.69) $ 1.30 S 3.24
Add back:

Goodwill amortization - 0.07 0.03
Diluted earnings (loss) per share —

adjusted $ (0.69) $ 1.37 S 3.27

NOTE
Debt

Debt at fiscal year-end consisted of the following:

{IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001
Unsecured promissory note at 1.2% $18.2 $19.4
Notes secured by equipment

at 7.0% - 8.0% 6.8 215
Convertible subordinated promissory notes - 10.0
Note secured by real estate at 12.6% - 4.6
Other 0.9 01
Total debt 259 55.6
Less current portion of long-term debt 5.5 294

Long-term debt @ @

The unsecured promissory note, which is due August 2004, is
denominated in Japanese yen (2,408,750,000). Interest is based on
1.125 percent over the 3-month Japanese libor rate and is reset
quarterly. Under the terms of the note, we are also required to
comply with the covenants set forth under our multicurrency cred-
it agreement.

Notes secured by equipment are collateralized by the underly-
ing equipment. Under the terms of the agreements, principal and
interest are due monthly over various original maturity periods

ranging from four to five years. Maturities of loans under these

agreements range from November 2002 to November 2003. These
financing agreements contain certain covenant and default provi-
sions that require us to maintain a certain level of tangible net
worth and permit the lenders cross-acceleration rights against cer-
tain other credit facilities.

The remaining note secured by real estate was assumed as part
of the repurchase of the equity interest in our Arlington, Texas,
facility, which we sold and leased back prior to 1990. The note was
fully repaid in March 2002.

The convertible subordinated promissory notes were issued in
connection with a retention arrangement related to the acquisition
of ComCore Semiconductor in fiscal 1998. They were issued to
each of the founding shareholders of ComCore for a total of $15.0
million. As a result of the termination of one ComCore founding
shareholder during fiscal 2000, we issued 247,104 shares of com-
mon stock upon the conversion of one of the promissory notes. In
fiscal 2001, we issued 617,760 shares of common stock to the two
remaining ComCore founding shareholders upon conversion of the
remaining $10.0 million promissory notes.

Our outstanding debt obligations mature in future fiscal years

as follows:

TOTAL DEBT
(IN MILLIONS| {PRINCIPAL ONLY)
2003 $ 55
2004 20.4
Total $25.9

We have a multicurrency credit agreement that provides for
multicurrency loans, letters of credit and standby letters of credit.
The total amount of credit under the agreement is $35.0 million.
The agreement expires in October, 2002 and we expect to renew
or replace it prior to expiration. At May 26, 2002, we had utilized
$18.6 million of the credit available under the agreement. This
agreement contains restrictive covenants, conditions and default
provisions that, among other terms, restrict payment of dividends
and require the maintenance of financial ratios and certain levels of
tangible net worth. At May 26, 2002, under the most restrictive of
these covenants, $206.0 million of tangible net worth was unre-

stricted and available for payment of dividends on common stock.
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MOTE

income Taxes

Worldwide pretax income (loss) from operations and income taxes
consist of the following:

{IN MILLIONS} 2002 2001 2000

INCOWME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES

AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEM

U.S. $(168.6} $231.0 $589.3

Non-U.S. 45.2 76.1 53.2

$(123.4) $307.1 $642.5

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (BEMEFIT)

Current:

U.S. federal $ (26.9) $ 20.2 $

U.S. state and local 0.4 0.4 -

Non-U.S. 1.0 13.2 27.0
{19.5) 338 27.0

Deferred:

U.S. federal and state 15.0 223 -

Non-U.S. 3.0 5.3 121
18.0 27.6 (12.1)

Income tax expense (benefit) $ (1.5) $ 614 $ 149

The fiscal 2002 tax benefit represented a refund of U.S. taxes
of $11.5 million as a result of the new federal tax act effective
March 9, 2002, which was partially offset by $10.0 million of taxes
due on international income.

The tax effects of temporary differences that constitute signifi-
cant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

are presented below:

MAY 26, MaY 27,
(IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Allowances and accruals §136.6 $170.9
Non-U.S. loss carryovers and other allowance 19.4 249
Federal and state credit carryovers 302.4 249.2
Other 79.6 10.6
Total gross deferred assets 538.0 455.6
Valuation allowance (447.3) (342.9)
Net deferred assets 90.7 112.7
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
Other liabilities (6.3) (10.3)
Total gross deferred liabilities (6.3) (10.3)
Net deferred tax assets $ 84.4 $102.4
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We record a valuation allowance to reflect the estimated
amount of deferred tax assets that may not be realized. This occurs
primarily when net operating losses and tax credit carryovers expire.
The valuation allowance increased by $104.4 million in fiscal 2002
compared to decreases of $108.3 million in fiscal 2001 and $85.5
million in fiscal 2000. The valuation allowance for deferred tax
assets includes $125.7 million and $100.2 million for stock option
deductions at May 26, 2002 and May 27, 2001, respectively. The ben-
efit of these deductions will be credited to equity if realized.

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets depends upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in
which those temporary differences become deductible. We consid-
er projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in
making this assessment. Based on the historical taxable income and
projections for future taxable income over the periods that the
deferred tax assets are deductible, we believe it is more likely than
not that we will realize the benefits of these deductible differences,
net of valuation allowances as of May 26, 2002.

The reconciliation between the income tax rate computed by
applying the U.S. federal statutory rate and the reported worldwide

tax rate follows:

2002 2001 2000

U.S. federal statutory tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Non-U.S. losses and tax differential
related to non-U.S. income 5.2 (5.6) (1.3)
Dividend and Subpart F income (26.3) 1.2 0.3
U.S. state and local taxes
net of federal benefits (0.1) 0.1 -
Current year loss and credits

not benefited (20.6) 6.5) (19.3)
Changes in beginning of year

valuation allowances 93 (7.8) (12.7)
Other {1.3) 3.6 0.3
Effective tax rate 1.2% 20.0% 2.3%

U.S. income taxes were provided on repatriated earnings of
non-U.S. subsidiaries. U.S. income taxes were also provided for
deferred taxes on undistributed earnings of non-U.S. subsidiaries
that are not expected to be permanently reinvested in the sub-
sidiaries. There has been no provision for U.S. income taxes for the
remaining undistributed earnings of approximately $433.2 million
at May 26, 2002, because we intend to reinvest these earnings
indefinitely in operations outside the United States. If these earn-
ings were distributed, additional U.S. taxes of approximately $91.3

million would accrue after utilization of U.S. tax credits.
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At May 26, 2002, we had U.S. and state credit carryovers of
approximately $198.9 million and $103.6 million, respectively, for tax
return purposes, which primarily expire between 2003 and 2022.
Included in the state credits, we had California R&D credits of approx-
imately $84.0 million at May 26, 2002, which can be carried forward
indefinitely. We also had capital and investment allowance carryovers
of approximately $56.9 million from certain non-U.S. jurisdictions.

National and the IRS have settled all issues and finalized the
federal income tax computations connected with the IRS's exami-
nation of tax returns for fiscal years 1986 through 1996. After giv-
ing effect to loss and credit carryovers, the tax deficiency for these
years was approximately $3.4 million, all of which has been paid.
The interest amount on the deficiency has been finalized. The IRS
has begun examination of our tax returns for fiscal 1997 through
2000. We believe that we have made adequate tax payments and/or
accrued adequate amounts in our financial statements to cover all

years in question.

NOTE
Shareholders’ Equity

STOCK PURCHASE RIGHTS

Each outstanding share of common stock carries with it a stock
purchase right. The rights are issued pursuant to a dividend distri-
bution that was initially declared on August 5, 1988. If and when
the rights become exercisable, each right entitles the registered
holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of series A jun-
ior participating preferred stock at a price of $60.00 per one-thou-
sandth share, subject to adjustment. The rights are attached to all
outstanding shares of common stock and no separate rights certifi-
cates have been distributed.

If any individual or group acquires 20 percent or more of com-
mon stock or announces a tender or exchange offer which, if com-
pleted, would result in that person or group owning at least 20
percent of the common stock, the rights become exercisable and
will detach from the common stock. If the person or group actual-
ly acquires 20 percent or more of the common stock (except in cer-
tain cash tender offers for all of the common stock), each right will
entitle the holder to purchase, at the right's then-current exercise

price, the common stock in an amount having a market value equal
to twice the exercise price. Similarly, if, after the rights become
exercisable, National merges or consolidates with or sells 50 per-
cent or more of its assets or earning power to another person or
entity, each right will then entitle the holder to purchase, at the
right’s then-current exercise price, the stock of the acquiring com-
pany in an amount having a market value equal to twice the exer-
cise price. National may redeem the rights at $0.01 per right at any
time prior to the acquisition by a person or group of 20 percent or
more of the outstanding common stock. Unless they are redeemed
earlier, the rights will expire on August 8, 20006.

STOCK RESERVES

During fiscal 1998, we reserved 926,640 shares of common stock
for issuance upon conversion of convertible subordinated promis-
sory notes issued to three individuals as partial consideration for
the acquisition of ComCore Semiconductor. During fiscal 2000,
247,104 shares were issued to one of these individuals (See Note
7), leaving a balance in the reserve of 679,536 shares. In fiscal 2002,
617,760 shares were issued to the remaining two individuals as final
pavment on the notes. The reserve for the remaining 61,776 shares
was cancelled.

When we merged with Cyrix in November 1997, 16.4 million
shares of common stock were issued to the holders of Cyrix com-
mon stock. In addition, we reserved up to 2.7 million shares of
common stock for issuance upon exercise of Cyrix employee or
director stock options or pursuant to Cyrix employee benefit plans
and up 10 2.6 million shares of common stock for issuance upon
conversion of Cyrix 3.5 percent convertible subordinated notes due
June 1, 2001. We repurchased substantially all of the outstanding
Cyrix convertible subordinated notes in fiscal 1998. The last remuin-
ing notes were paid off in June 2001 and the reserve held for the
conversion of the notes was cancelled.

We have paid no cash dividends on our common stock and we

intend to continue our practice of reinvesting all earnings.

NMOTE

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

STOCK OPTION PLANS

We have three stock option plans under which employees and offi-
cers may be granted stock options to purchase shares of common
stock. One plan, which has been in effect since 1977, authorizes the

grant of up to 39,354,929 shares of common stock for nonqualified
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or incentive stock options (as defined in the U.S. tax code) to offi-
cers and key employees. Another plan authorizes the grant of up
to 70,000,000 shares of common stock for nonqualified stock
options to employees who are not executive officers. There is also
an executive officer stock option plan, which authorizes the grant
of up to 6,000,000 shares of common stock for nonqualified options
only to the company’s executive officers. These plans generally
provide that options are granted at the market price on the date of
grant and expire up to a maximum of ten years and one day after
grant or three months after termination of employment (up to five
years after termination due to death, disability or retirement),
whichever occurs first. We have historically used options as a major
component of employee compensation packages, consistent with
practices throughout the semiconductor and high technology
industry. Options can vest after a six-month period, but most vest
ratably over a four-year period.

When we merged with Cyrix in fiscal 1998, we assumed
Cyrix’s outstanding obligations under its 1988 incentive stock plan.
Each option under the Cyrix plan converted into the right or option
to purchase 0.825 share of National common stock. The purchase
price of the option was also adjusted accordingly. Options under
the Cyrix 1988 incentive stock plan expire up to a maximum of ten
years after grant, subject to earlier expiration upon termination of
employment. No more options will be granted under the Cyrix 1988
incentive stock plan.

As part of the acquisitions of ComCore Semiconductor in fiscal
1998 and Mediamatics in fiscal 1997, we assumed ComCore’s and
Mediamatics’ outstanding obligations under their stock option plans
and stock option agreements for their employees and consultants.
ComCore and Mediamatics optionees received an option for equiv-
alent shares of National common stock based on an exchange rate
determined under the applicable acquisition agreements. The
options expire up to a maximum of ten years after grant, subject to
earlier expiration upon termination of employment. No more
options will be granted under either of these stock option plans.
The Mediamatics transaction resulted in a new measurement date
for these options and we recorded related unearned compensation
in the amount of $9.2 million. Amortization of this unearned com-

pensation, which was recorded ratably over the vesting period of
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these options, was fully expensed by February 2001. The compen-
sation expense for these Mediamatics options was $1.2 million in
fiscal 2001 and $2.8 million in fiscal 2000.

The following table summarizes information about options

outstanding under these plans at May 26, 2002:

QUTSTANDING OPTIONS

WEIGHTED-
AVERAGE  WEIGHTED-
RANGE OF NUMBER REMAINING  AVERAGE
EXERCISE OF SHARES ~ CONTRACTUAL  EXERCISE
PRICES (IN THOUSANDS)  LIFE {IN YEARS) PRICE
ComCore
option plan $0.50-30.77 3.2 5.4 $0.69
Mediamatics
option plan $2.85 29 4.8 $2.85

We have a director stock option plan that was first approved
by shareholders in fiscal 1998 which authorizes the grant of up to
1,000,000 shares of common stock to eligible directors who are not
employees of the company. Options were granted automatically
upon approval of the plan by stockholders and are granted auto-
matically to eligible directors upon their appointment to the board
and subsequent election to the board by stockholders. Director
stock options vest in full after six months. Under this plan, options
to purchase 280,000 shares of common stock with a weighted-
average exercise price of $30.75 and weighted-average remaining
contractual life of 7.3 years were outstanding as of May 26, 2002,

Upon his retirement in May 1995, we granted the former
chairman of the company an option to purchase 300,000 shares of
common stock at $27.875 per share. The option was granted out-
side the company’s stock option plans at the market price on the
date of grant. It expires ten years and one day after grant and
became exercisable ratably over a four-year period. As of May 26,
2002, options to purchase 140,000 shares of common stock were
outstanding under this option grant.

In connection with the acquisition of innoComm Wireless, we
granted options to purchase 799,339 shares of common stock at
$27.44 to three founding shareholders of innoComm. The options
were granted outside the stock option plans at the market price on
the date of grant and become exercisable two years after grant. The
option gives the innoComm Wireless founding shareholders the
right to receive all or a portion of their third installment of the pur-
chase price in cash or shares of common stock.

Changes in shares of common stock outstanding under the
option plans during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 or otherwise (but
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excluding the ComCore, Mediamatics, innoComm Wireless, director

and former chairman options), were as follows:

WEIGHTED-

NUMBER AVERAGE

{IN MILLIONS) OF SHARES  EXERCISE PRICE
Outstanding May 30, 1999 35.4 $14.80
Granted 9.4 $56.96
Exercised (6.6) $15.74
Cancelled G2 $14.81
Outstanding at May 28, 2000 33.0 $26.55
Granted 11.5 $27.15
Exercised 3.0 $13.29
Cancelled [€X)) $31.69
Outstanding May 27, 2001 38.5 $27.35
Granted 9.8 $32.33
Exercised (4.5) $18.15
Cancelled 2.3) $34.92
Outstanding May 26, 2002 415 $29.08

Expiration dates for options outstanding at May 26, 2002 range
from July 13, 2002 to May 6, 2012.

The following tables summarize information about options
outstanding under these plans (excluding the ComCore,
Mediamatics, innoComm Wireless, director and former chairman
options) at May 26, 2002:

QUTSTANDING OPTIONS

WEIGHTED-
NUMBER  AVERAGE REMAINING WEIGHTED-
OF SHARES CONTRACTUAL LIFE AVERAGE
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES (IN MILLIONS) (IN YEARS) EXERCISE PRICE
$8.38-$13.00 8.5 6.5 $12.74
$13.06-523.00 6.6 3.5 $15.70
$23.05-$25.95 7.6 8.8 $25.76
$26.00-$31.37 3.7 7.6 $28.29
$31.44-$34.20 7.7 9.7 $34.16
$34.49-$59.75 1.0 8.0 $46.67
$59.88-579.62 64 7.9 $60.11
Total 415 7.7 $29.08

OPTIONS EXCERCISABLE

NUMBER WEIGHTED-
OF SHARES AVERAGE
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES (IN MILLIONS|  EXERCISE PRICE
$8.38-$13.00 5.8 $12.73
$13.06-$23.00 4.9 $15.44
$23.05-$25.95 1.9 $25.71
$26.00-$31.37 1.4 $29.38
$31.44-534.20 0.2 $33.73
$34.49-859.75 0.4 $48.17
$59.88-$79.62 3.2 $60.04
Total 17.8 $25.62

On October 24, 2000, an option grant was made to employees
who had received options in the prior calendar year. Excluded from
this grant were the president and chief executive officer and exec-
utive staff members. This special grant was made because of the
significant decline in the stock’s market price during the first half of
fiscal 2001, Shares under the option grant vested 100 percent one
year from the date of grant and expired 15 months from the date
of grant. Options to purchase a total 1.9 million shares at $24.123
per share were granted in the special option grant.

As of May 26, 2002, approximately 83.9 million shares were
reserved for issuance under all option plans, including shares avail-

able for future option grants.

STOCK PURCHASE PLANS

We have an employee stock purchase plan that has been in effect
since 1977 that authorizes the issuance of up to 24,950,000 shares
of stock in quarterly offerings to eligible employees at a price that
is equal to 85 percent of the lower of the common stock’s fair mar-
ket value at the beginning or the end of a quarterly period. We also
have an employee stock purchase plan available to employees at
international locations that has been in effect since 1994. This plan
authorizes the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of stock in quar-
terly offerings to eligible employees at a price equal to 85 percent
of the lower of its fair market value art the beginning or the end of
a quarterly period. Both purchase plans use a captive broker and
we deposit shares purchased by the employee with the captive bro-
ker. In addition, for the international purchase plan, the partici-
pant’s local employer is responsible for paying the difference
between the purchase price set by the terms of the plan and the
fair market value at the time of the purchase. Both purchase plans
have been approved by stockholders.

Under the terms of the stock purchase plan and the global
stock purchase plan, we issued 1.2 million shares in fiscal 2002, 1.1
million shares in fiscal 2001 and 1.3 million shares in fiscal 2000 to
employees for $26.7 million, $27.3 million and $26.3 million,
respectively. As of May 26, 2002, approximately 7.3 million shares
were reserved for issuance under the two stock purchase plans.

OTHER STOCK PLANS
We have a director stock plan that authorizes the issuance of up
to 200,000 shares of common stock to eligible directors who are

not employees of the company. The common stock is issued
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automatically to eligible new directors upon their appointment to
the board and to all eligible directors on their subsequent election
to the board by shareholders. Directors may also elect to take their
annual retainer fees for board and committee membership in stock
under the plan. As of May 26, 2002, 85,624 shares had been issued
under the director stock plan and 114,376 shares were reserved for
future issuances.

We have a restricted stock plan, which authorizes the issuance
of up to 2,000,000 shares of common stock to employees who are
not officers of the company. The plan has been made available to
a limited group of emplovees with technical expertise we consider
important. During fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, 112,000, 240,000 and
166,500 shares, respectively, were issued under the restricted stock
plan. Restrictions expire over time, ranging from two to six years
after issuance. Based upon the market value on the dates of
issuance, we recorded $3.1 million, $7.5 million and $8.3 million of
unearned compensation during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000, respec-
tively. This unearned compensation is included as a separate com-
ponent of shareholders’ equity in the financial statements and is
amortized to operations ratably over the applicable restriction peri-
ods. As of May 26, 2002, 1,073,250 shares were reserved for future
issuances under the restricted stock plan.

In May 1996, we issued 200,000 shares of restricted stock to
Brian L. Halla, then newly hired president and chief executive offi-
cer. These shares were not issued under the restricted stock plan
and had restrictions that expired annually over a four-year period.
The shares were recorded at the market value on the date of
issuance as unearned compensation included as a separate compo-
nent of shareholders’ equity in the consolidated financial statements
and were amortized to operations over the four-year vesting period.
These restricted shares were granted to Mr. Halla specifically as part
of his compensation package when he joined the company.

Compensation expense for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 related
to all shares of restricted stock, including the shares granted to Mr.
Halla, was $3.4 million, $3.0 million and $2.0 million, respectively.
At May 26, 2002, the weighted-average grant date fair value for all
outstanding shares of restricted stock was $28.78.

Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per
share is required by SFAS No. 123. This information is required to
be determined as if we had accounted for stock-based awards to
employees under the fair value method specified by SFAS No. 123.

The weighted-average fair value of stock options granted during
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fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 was $17.49, $15.88 and $36.36 per share,
respectively. The weighted-average fair value of rights granted
under the stock purchase plans was $6.47, $9.73 and $7.38 for fis-
cal 2002, 2001 and 2000. The fair value of the stock-based awards
to employees was estimated using a Black-Scholes option pricing
mode] that assumes no expected dividends and the following
weighted-average assumptions for fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000:

2002 2001 2000
Stock Option Plans

Expected life (in years) 5.1 5.7 5.8

Expected volatility 75% 73% 64%

Risk-free interest rate 4.5% 5.0% 6.6%
Stock Purchase Plans

Expected life (in years) 0.3 0.3 0.3

Expected volatility 57% 95% 100%

Risk-free interest rate 1.7% 3.7% 5.8%

For pro forma purposes, the estimated fair value of stock-
based awards to employees is amortized over the options’ vesting
period (for options) and the three-month purchase period (for
stock purchases) under the stock purchase plans. The pro forma

information follows:

{IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS) 2002 2001 2000
Net income (loss) — as reported $(121.9) $245.7 $620.8
Net income (loss) — pro forma $(280.5) $132.9 $550.3
Basic earnings (loss) per share —

as reported $ {0.69) $ 1.40 $ 3.58
Basic earnings (loss) per share —

pro forma $ (1.58) $ 0.76 $ 3.17
Diluted earnings (loss) per share —
as reported $ (0.69) $ 1.30 $ 3.24
Diluted earnings (loss) per share —

pro forma $ {1.58) $ 071 § 2.87

NOTE

Retirement and Pension Plans

Our retirement and savings program for U.S. employees consists of
two plans, as follows:

The profit sharing plan requires contributions of the greater of
5 percent of consolidated net earnings before income taxes (sub-
ject to a limit of 3% of payroll) or 1 percent of payroll.
Contributions are made 25 percent in National stock and 75 percent
in cash and contributions made in National stock must remain in
National stock until the employee leaves the company and termi-

nates participation in the plan. Total shares contributed under the
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profit sharing plan during fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000 were 128,919
shares, 104,151 shares and 34,025 shares, respectively. As of May
26, 2002, 1.1 million shares of common stock were reserved for
future contributions.

The salary deferral 401(k) plan allows emplovees to defer up
to 15 percent of their salaries, subject to certain limitations, with
partially matching company contributions. Contributions are invest-
ed in one or more of thirteen investment funds at the discretion of
the employee. One of the investment funds is a stock fund in which
contributions are invested in National common stock at the discre-
tion of the employee. 401(K) investments made by the employee in
National stock may be sold ar any time upon direction of the
employee. Although 3.0 million shares of common stock are
reserved for issuance to the stock fund, shares purchased to date
with contributions have been purchased on the open market and
we have not issued any stock directly to the stock fund.

We also have a deferred compensation plan, which allows
highly compensated employees (as defined by IRS regulations) to
receive a higher profit sharing plan allocation than would otherwise
be permitted under IRS regulations and to defer greater percentages
of compensation than would otherwise be permitted under the
salary deferral 401¢k) plan and IRS regulations. The deferred com-
pensation plan is a nonqualified plan of deferred compensation
maintained in a rabbi trust. Participants can direct the investment of
their deferred compensation plan accounts in the same investment
funds offered by the 401(k) plan (with the exception of the com-
pany stock fund, which is not available for the nonqualified plan).

Certain of our subsidiaries that are not located in the U.S. have
varying types of defined benefit pension and retirement plans that
are consistent with local statutes and practices.

The annual expense for all plans was as follows:

(IN MILLIONS} 2002 2001 2000
Profit sharing plan $ 3.6 $19.9 $155
Salary deferral 401(k) plan $11.0 $10.6 $10.8
Non-U.S. pension and retirement plans $10.6 $83 $10.7

Defined benefit pension plans maintained in the UK,

Germany and Japan cover all eligible employees within each

respective country. Pension plan benefits are based primarily on
participants’ compensation and years of service credited as speci-
fied under the terms of each country’s plan. The funding policy is
consistent with the local requirements of each country. The plans’
assets consist primarily of U.S. and foreign equity securities, bonds,
property and cash.

Net annual periodic pension cost of these non U.S. defined

benefit pension plans is presented in the following table:

{IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001 2000
Service cost of benefits earned

during the year $4.3 $4.1 $5.5
Plan participant contributions (0.9} 0.7 (1.3)
Interest cost on projected

benefit obligation 15 7.0 6.5
Expected return on plan assets (5.3) (5.6) (5.2)
Net amortization and deferral 1.3 02 _0.9
Net periodic pension cost $6.9 | $3.0 $64

Benefit obligation and asset data of these plans at fiscal year-
end and details of their changes during the year are presented in

the following tables:

{IN MILLIONS) 2002 2001
BENEFIT OBLIGATION
Beginning balance $122.9 $120.0
Service cost 4.3 4.1
Interest cost 15 7.0
Benefits paid (1.9) 2.6
Actuarial loss 2.2 6.6
Exchange rate adjustment 1.9 (12.2)
Ending balance $136.9 $122.9
PLAN ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
Beginning balance $ 75.7 $ 823
Actual return on plan assets (5.3) 7.9
Company contributions 1.9 12.2
Plan participant contributions 09 0.7
Benefits paid (1.8} 2.5
Exchange rate adjustment 1.7 9.1
Ending balance $ 83.1 $ 757
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS
Fund status — Benefit obligation in
excess of plan assets $ 53.8 $ 47.2
Unrecognized net loss {59.7) 47.1)
Unrecognized net
transition obligation 2.1 2.1
Adjustment to recognize
minimum liability 59.9 47.2
Accrued pension cost $ 56.1 $ 494
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The projected benefit obligations and net periodic pension

cost were determined using the following assumptions:

2002 2001 2000

Discount rate 2.8%-6.5% 3.0%-6.5% 3.0%-6.5%

Rate of increase in
compensation levels

Expected long-term

return on assets

2.8%-3.8% 3.0%-4.3% 3.0%-4.5%

3.8%-7.5% 4.0%-7.5% 4.0%-8.0%

For fiscal 2002 and 2001, we recorded adjustments for mini-
mum liability of $12.7 million and $16.0 million, respectively, to
adjust liability related to one of our plans to equal the amount of
the unfunded accumulated benefit obligation as required by the
pension accounting standard. The corresponding offset is recorded
in the financial statements as a component of accumulated other

comprehensive loss.

NOTE

Commitments and Contingencies

COMMITMENTS
We lease certain facilities and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Rental expenses under operating leases were $25.3
million, $26.3 million and $28.1 million in fiscal 2002, 2001 and
2000, respectively.

Future minimum commitments under noncancellable operat-

ing leases are as follows:

(IN MILLIONS}

2003 $16.5
2004 14.1
2005 11.7
2006 7.9
2007 6.0
Thereafter _ 99
Total $66.1

As part of the Fairchild transaction in fiscal 1997, we entered
into a manufacturing agreement with Fairchild where we commit-
ted to purchase a minimum of $330.0 million in goods and servic-
es during the first 39 months after the transaction, based on

specified wafer prices, which are intended to approximate market
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prices. The agreement expired in June 2000. During fiscal 2000, our
total purchases under the agreement were $87.5 million. In June
2000, we extended the manufacturing arrangement for one year
with similar terms. Total purchases from Fairchild in fiscal 2001
were $55.4 million, most of which were made under the one-year
extension. Prior to the end of fiscal 2001, we entered into a two-
year extension under similar terms where we have committed to
purchase a minimum of $30.0 million and $20.0 million of product
from Fairchild in fiscal 2002 and 2003, respectively. Under this
extension, our purchases from Fairchild during fiscal 2002 totaled
$32.3 million.

In June 2000, we entered into a ten-year licensing agreement
with Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company to gain access
to a variety of TSMC’s advanced sub-micron processes for use in
our wafer fabrication facility in Maine as desired, if and when those
processes are developed by TSMC. Prior to this agreement, we
were only utilizing our own process technology in Maine. Total
license fees of $187.0 million are 1o be paid quarterly through April
2006. We paid license fees of $37.0 million in fiscal 2002 and $35.0
million in fiscal 2001. In connection with this agreement, we are
also required to pay a royalty of 5 percent on wafers we manufac-
ture utilizing the TSMC process technology that are in excess of a
pre-determined minimum level in any calendar quarter. No royal-
ties have been paid during either fiscal 2002 or 2001 under this

agreement.

CONTINGENCIES — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In April 1988, we received a notice from the of U.S. Customs
Service in San Francisco alleging that we had underpaid duties of
approximately $19.5 million on goods that we had imported from
our foreign subsidiaries from June 1, 1979 to March 1, 1985. We
had been contesting the notice in various proceedings since 1988.
In March 1998, the Assistant Commissioner of Customs reduced the
amount of the alleged underpayment to approximately $3.6 mil-
lion. The underpayment was subject to penalties computed as a
multiple of the underpayment. In July 2001, the Customs Service
accepted our offer to settle the matter for $2.5 million. We had
already paid this amount to the Customs Service. The matter is

now concluded.
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We have been named to the National Priorities List for our
Santa Clara, California, site and have completed a remedial investi-
gation/feasibility study with the Regional Water Quality Control
Board, acting as an agent for the Federal Environmental Protection
Agency. We have agreed in principle with the RWQCB to a site
remediation plan. We were sued by AMD, which sought recovery
of cleanup costs AMD incurred in the Santa Clara area under the
RWQCB orders for contamination that AMD alleged were original-
ly caused by us. The settlement of this case was completed in fis-
cal 2002 and the AMD suit is now concluded.

In addition to the Santa Clara site, from time to time we have
been designated as a potentially responsible party by federal and
state agencies for certain environmental sites with which we may
have had direct or indirect involvement. These designations are
made regardless of the extent of our involvement. These claims are
in various stages of administrative or judicial proceedings and
include demands for recovery of past governmental costs and for
future investigations and remedial actions. In many cases, the dol-
lar amounts of the claims have not been specified, and with respect
to a number of the PRP claims, have been asserted against a num-
ber of other entities for the same cost recovery or other relief as
was sought from us. We accrue costs associated with environmen-
tal martters when they become probable and reasonably estimable.
The amount of all environmental charges to earnings, including
charges for the Santa Clara site remediation, (excluding potential
reimbursements from insurance coverage), were not material dur-
ing fiscal 2002, 2001 and 2000.

As part of the disposition in fiscal 1996 of the Dynacraft assets
and business, we retained responsibility for environmental claims
connected with Dynacraft’s Santa Clara, California, operations and
for other environmental claims arising from our conduct of the
Dynacraft business prior to the disposition. As part of the Fairchild
disposition in fiscal 1997, we also agreed to retain liability for cur-
rent remediation projects and environmental marters arising from
our prior operation of Fairchild’s plants in South Portland, Maine;
West Jordan, Utah; Cebu, Philippines; and Penang, Malaysia; and
Fairchild agreed to arrange for and perform the remediation and
cleanup. We prepaid to Fairchild the estimated costs of the reme-
diation and cleanup and remain responsible for costs and expens-
es incurred by Fairchild in excess of the prepaid amounts.

In January 1999 a class action suit was filed against us and our

chemical suppliers by former and present employees claiming dam-

ages for personal injuries. The complaint alleges that cancer and
reproductive harm were caused to employees exposed to
chemicals in the workplace. Plaintiffs presently seek a certification
of a medical monitoring class, which we oppose. Discovery in the
case is proceeding.

In November, 2000, a derivative action was brought against us
and other defendants by a shareholder of Fairchild Semiconductor
International, Inc. Plaintiff seeks recovery of alleged “short-swing”
profits under section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
from the sale by the defendants in January 2000 of Fairchild com-
mon stock. The complaint alleges that Fairchild’s conversion of pre-
ferred stock held by the defendants at the time of Fairchild’s initial
public offering in August 1999 constitutes a “purchase” that must be
matched with the January 2000 sale for purposes of computing the
“short-swing” profits. Plaintiff seeks from National alleged recover-
able profits of approximately $14.1 million. In February, 2002, the
judge in the case granted the motion to dismiss filed by us and our
co-defendants and dismissed the case, ruling that the conversion
was done pursuant to a reclassification which is exempt from the
scope of Section 16(b). Plaintiff appealed the dismissal of the case
in March 2002,

Our tax returns for certain years are under examination in
the U.S. by the IRS (See Note 8). In addition to the foregoing, we
are a party to other suits and claims that arise in the normal course
of business.

Based on current information, we do not believe that it is
probable that losses associated with the proceedings discussed
above that exceed amounts already recognized will be incurred in
amounts that would be material to our financial position or results

of operations.




NOTE

Segment and Geographic Information

We design, develop, manufacture and market a wide array of semi-
conductor products for applications in a variety of markets. We are
organized by various product line business units. For segment
reporting purposes, each of our product line business units repre-
sents an operating segment as defined under SFAS No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related
Information,” and our chief executive officer is considered the chief
operating decision-maker. Business units that have similarities,
including economic characteristics, underlying technology, markets
and customers, are aggregated into segments. Under the criteria in
SFAS No. 131, only the Analog segment and the Information
Appliance segment are considered reportable segments. All other
segments are included in the caption “All Others.” Prior to fiscal
2000, the former Cyrix business unit was also considered a separate
reportable operating segment.

The Analog segment includes a wide range of building block
products such as high-performance operational amplifiers, power
management circuits, data acquisition circuits, interface circuits and
circuits targeted towards leading-edge monitor applications such as
ultra-thin flat panel displays. The Analog segment’s wireless circuits
perform the radio, baseband controller, power management and
other related functions primarily for handsets and base stations in
the cellular and cordless telephones. The segment is heavily
focused on using our analog expertise as the initial point to inte-
grate systems on a chip aimed at the cellular, personal systems and
information appliance markets. Current offerings include a com-
plete GSM chipset solution, audio subsystems and flat panel display

column drivers, integrated receivers and timing controllers.

The Information Appliance segment contains all business units
focused on providing component and system solutions to the
emerging information appliance market, which we are strategically
focusing on to provide next-generation solutions. These products
include application-specific integrated microprocessors based on
our Geode™ technology and diverse advanced input/output con-
rollers. The Information Appliance segment is focused on three
key market segments that include enterprise thin clients (comput-
ers that have minimal memory and access software from a central-
ized server network), interactive TV set-top boxes (equipped with
digital video) and personal information access devices such as
those currently being designed for the Microsoft Mira project.

The former Cyrix business unit primarily offered a line of Cyrix
M II microprocessors, which were stand-alone central processing
units that were targeted toward the sub-$1,000 PC market. In this
market, which is currently dominated by two major competitors, we
experienced highly competitive pricing trends and constant pres-
sure to rapidly release new microprocessors with higher operating
speeds. As a result, we decided to exit the Cyrix PC microproces-
sor business in May 1999 and completed the sale of the assets of
this business to VIA Technologies in September 1999 (See Note 3).

Aside from these operating segments, our corporate structure
also includes the centralized Worldwide Marketing and Sales
Group, the Central Technology and Manufacturing Group, and the
Corporate Group. Certain expenses of these groups are allocated to
the operating segments and are included in their segment operat-
ing results,

With the exception of the allocation of certain expenses, the
significant accounting policies and practices used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements as described in Note 1 are gener-
ally followed in measuring the sales, segment income or loss and
determination of assets for each reportable segment. We allocate
certain expenses associated with centralized manufacturing, selling,
marketing and general administration to reporting segments based
on either the percentage of net trade sales for each operating seg-
ment to total net trade sales or headcount, as appropriate. Certain
R&D expenses primarily associated with centralized activities such
as process development are allocated to operating segments based
on the percentage of dedicated R&D expenses for each operating
segment to total dedicated R&D expenses. A portion of interest
income and interest expense is indirectly allocated to operating

segments and is included in segment operating results.
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The following table presents specified amounts included in the measure of segment results or the determination of segment assets:

INFORMATION CYRIX
ANALOG APPLIANCE BUSINESS TOTAL
(IN MILLIDONS) SEGMENT SEGMENT UNIT ALL OTHERS ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIOATED
2002
Sales to unaffiliated customers $1,126.8 $ 198.7 $ — $ 169.3 $ - $1,494.8
Segment loss before income taxes $ (12.2)  $ (884 $ — § (22.8) $ - $ (123.4)
Depreciation and amortization $ 14.0 $ 71 $ - $ 2093 $ 2304
Interest income $ - $ - $ - s 252 $ 252
Interest expense $ - 3 - $ - .S 39 $ 39
Segment assets $ 2869 $ 186 $ - $1,983.3 $2,288.8
2001
Sales to unaffiliated customers $1,516.8 $ 227.0 $ - $ 3688 L $2,112.6
Inter—segment sales — 0.1 — — 0.1 —
Net sales $1,516.8 $ 227.1 $ - S 368.8 $ (0. $2,112.6
Segment income (loss) before income taxes $ 364.1 $ (106.5) $ - $§ 495 $§ - § 307.1
Depreciation and amortization $ 249 $ 9.7 $ - S 208.7 § 2433
Interest income $ - $ $ - $ 573 s 573
Interest expense $ - 3 - $ - § 33 $ 353
Segment assets $ 1457 $ 281 $ - $2,188.5 $2,362.3
2000
Sales to unaffiliated customers $1,514.1 $ 239.1 $ 186 $ 368.1 $ - $2,120.9
Inter—segment sales - 0.3 - - 0.3 -
Net sales $1,514.1 $ 2304 $ 186 $ 368.1 $(0.3) $2,139.9
Segment income (loss) before income taxes
and extraordinary item S 4541 $ 99.8) $(22.6) $ 3108 § - 8 6425
Depreciation and amortization § 138 $ 139 $ 33 S 2328 $ 2638
Interest income $ - $ - $ - S 332 $ 332
Interest expense $ - $ - $ S 179 $ 179
Segment assets $ 133.0 $ 308 $ - $2,218.4 $2.382.2
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Depreciation and amortization presented for each segment
include only such charges on dedicated segment assets. The
measurement of segment profit and loss includes an allocation
of depreciation expense for shared manufacturing facilities con-
tained in each segment’s product standard cost.

We operate in three main geographic areas that include the
Americas, Europe and the Asia Pacific region including Japan. In
the information thart follows, sales include local sales and exports

made by operations within each area. Total sales by geographic

area include sales to unaffiliated customers and inter-geographic
transfers, which are based on standard cost. To control costs, a sub-
stantial portion of our products are transported between the
Americas, Europe and the Asia Pacific region in the process of
being manufactured and sold. Sales to unaffiliated customers have
little correlation with the location of manufacture.

The following tables provides geographic sales and asset infor-
mation by major countries within the main geographic areas (Japan

is included with the rest of the world):

UNITED UNITED REST OF TOTAL
{IN MILLIONS) STATES KINGDOM HONG KONG SINGAPORE WORLD ELIMINATIONS CONSOLIDATED
2002
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 3777 $169.7 $423.0 $ 2294 $295.0 $1,494.8
Transfers between geographic areas 364.1 126.0 0.2 619.1 0.3 $(1.109.7) -
Net sales $ 741.8 $295.7 $423.2 $ 848.5 $295.3  $(3,109.7) $1,494.8
Long-lived assets $ 7889 $ 423 $ 0.7 $ 088 $123.6  $ - $1,024.3
2001
Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 7023 $313.5 $445.8 S 2215 $429.5 $2,112.6
Transfers between geographic areas 470.2 181.1 0.7 747.4 1.0 $Q1,400.9 -
Net sales $1,172.5 $494.6 $446.5 S 968.9 $430.5  $(1,400.4) $2,112.6
Long-lived assets $ 7424 $ 49.1 $ 09 $ 879 $141.9 % - $1,022.2
2000
Sales to unaffiliated customers S 761.7 $348.8 $439.1 $ 214.6 $375.7 $2,139.9
Transfers between geographic areas 544.2 192.1 0.1 875.8 0.7  $(1,612.9 -
Net sales $1,305.9 $540.9 $439.2 $1,090.4 $376.4  $(1,612.9) $2,139.9
Long-lived assets $ 6327 $ 37.1 $ 12§ 936 $137.3 3§ - $ 901.9




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information
and Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

(IN MILLIONS} 2002 2001 2000

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for:

Interest expense $ 4.0 $ 5.6 $ 215
Income taxes $16.2 $80.1 $ 216
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NOMCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Issuance of stock for employee benefit plans $43 $ 41 $ 09
Issuance of stock for director stock plan $ 0.2 $ 0.3 $ 04
Change in unrealized gain on available-for-sale securities $23.2 $11.3 $(18.6)
Change in unrealized loss on cash flow hedges $04 $ - $ -
Unearned compensation relating to restricted stock issuance $ 31 $ 7.5 $ 83
Issuance of common stock upon conversion of convertible subordinated promissory notes $10.0 $ - $ 7.1
Restricted stock cancellation $ 09 $ 28 S 6.0
Minimum pension liability $12.7 $16.0 $ 6.2
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NOTE @

Financial Information by Quarter {Unaudited)

The following table presents the quarterly information for fiscal 2002 and 2001:

(IN MILLIDNS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

2002

Net sales

Gross margin

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Net income (loss):
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average common and potential common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Common stock price ~ high
Common stock price - low

2001

Net sales

Gross margin

Net income (loss)

Earnings (loss) per share:
Net income (loss):
Basic
Diluted

Weighted-average common and potential common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Common stock price — high
Common stock price — low

FOURTH
QUARTER

$419.5
$180.5
$ 17.1

S 0.10
§ 0.09

179.8

190.6
$37.30
$24.93

$401.2
$ 164.4
$ (44.4)

$ (0.26)
$ (0.20)

173.6
173.6

$30.97
$19.71

THIRD
QUARTER

$369.5
$133.3
$ (37.8)

$ (0.2
$(0.21)

178.4
178.4
$34.91
$25.03

$475.6
$233.0
5 39.2

o o

174.0
183.0
$29.41
$17.13

SECOND
QUARTER

$ 366.5
$129.5
$ (46.6)

$

~

0.26)
0.2

176.8
176.8

$35.10
§19.70

$595.0
$300.7
$106.7

0.60
$ 036
178.1

191.9

$ 47.94
$19.69

FIRST
QUARTER

$339.3
$110.1
$ (54.6)

$ (0.31)
$ (0.31)

174.9
174.9

$34.97
$24.86

$ 640.8
§339.4
$144.2

$ 0.81
$ 074

178.1
195.8

$73.88
$31.25

The company’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Pacific Exchange. The quoted market prices are

as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape. At May 26, 2002, there were approximately 8,194 holders of common stock.




Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
National Semiconductor Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
National Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries as of May 26,
2002 and May 27, 2001, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income (loss), shareholders’ equity and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended May
206, 2002. These consolidated financial statements are the responsi-
bility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing stan-
dards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the account-
ing principles used and significant estimates made by manage-
ment, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis

for our opinton.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred
to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posi-
tion of National Semiconductor Corporation and subsidiaries as of
May 26, 2002 and May 27, 2001, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended May 26, 2002 in conformity with accounting principles gen-
erally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opin-
ion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in
relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set
forth therein.

KPMc LLP

Mountain View, California
June 5, 2002

49




Management

Directors

STEVEN R. APPLETON
Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer,
Micron Technology, Inc.

GARY P. ARNOLD*

Former President, Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer,
Analogy, Inc.

RICHARD J. DANZIG*
Senior Fellow,
Center for Naval Analysis

ROBERT . FRANKENBERE
Chairman,
Kinzan, Inc.

BRIAN L. HALLA

Chairman, President and

Chief Executive Officer

National Semiconductor Corporation

E. FLOYD KYAMME
Partner, Kleiner, Perkins
Caufield & Byers, Venture
Capital Firm

MODESTO A. MAIDIQUE
President, Florida

International University

EDWARD R. MCCRACKEN*
Chairman of the Board,
The PRASAD Project.
Former Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
Silicon Graphics, Inc.

*Member of the Audit Committee
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Executive Staff

BRIAM L. HALLA
Chairman,
President and Chief
Executive Officer

KAMAL K. AGGARWAL
Executive Vice President,
Central Technology and
Manufacturing Group

LEWIS CHEW
Senior Vice President, Finance
and Chief Financial Officer

JOUM M. CLARK tHi
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

DETLEV KUNZ
Senior Vice President,
Worldwide Marketing and Sales

DOMALD MACLEGD
Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer

ULRICH SEIF
Senior Vice President and
Chief Information Officer

EDWARD J. SWEENY
Senior Vice President,
Human Resources

Other Officers

JEANM-LOUIS BORIES
Executive Vice President

and General Manager,
Information Appliance Group

GOB! R. PADMANABHAN
Senior Vice President,
Technology Strategy

SUNEIL PARULEKAR
Senior Vice President,
Analog Products Group

MOHAM YEGNASHANKARAWN
Senior Vice President,

Central Technology Development
and Infrastructure

ROBERT E. DEBARR
Controller

JAMES R. FOLTZ

Treasurer

MANCY LUCKE LUDGUS
Assistant Secretary




Board of Directors

BRIAR L. HALLA, CHAIRMAN
Brian L. Halla, Chairman, joined the Company as
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive

Officer on May 3, 1996. He was formerly Executive
Vice President of LSI Logic Corporation, responsible for the devel-
opment of all LSI Logic product lines. Prior to that he was with Intel
Corporation for 14 years, most recently as Director of Marketing for

Intel’s Microcomputer Group.

STEVEN R. APPLETON

C) Steven R. Appleton is the Chairman of the Board, Chief

| Executive Officer and President of Micron Technology,

| Inc., a position he has held since 1994. Micron is a
leading worldwide provider of semiconductor memory solutions for
computer and computer-peripheral manufacturing, consumer elec-
tronics, CAD/CAM, office automation, telecommunications, net-
working and data processing, and graphics display. Appleton joined
Micron in 1983 and has held a series of increasingly responsible
positions, including Production Manager, Director of Manufacturing,
and Vice President of Manufacturing. In 1991, Appleton was
appeinted President and Chief Operating Officer of Micron.

GARY P. ARNOLD

e Gary P. Arnold has extensive experience in the inter-
£ ‘ | national electronics industry in finance, strategic plan-
u‘ ning and operations. From January 1993 to March

2000 he was President, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the

Board of Analogy, Inc,, a leading supplier of product design and
simulation software headquartered in Beaverton, Oregon. Prior to
that, he held Chief Financial Officer positions at Tektronix, Inc. and
at National Semiconductor.

RICHARD J. DANZIG
Richard J. Danzig served as Secretary of the Navy in
Y the Clinton administration from November 1998 to

‘ January 2001. Prior to that, he was a Traveling Fellow
in Asia and Europe for the Center for International Political Economy
and an Adjunct Professor at Maxwell’s School of Citizenship and
Public Affairs. He has served previously as a member of National
Semiconductor’s board, from 1987 to 1993. Danzig is a graduate of
Reed College and also has degrees from Yale Law School and from
Oxford University, where he was a Rhodes Scholar.

/':?»\ ROBERT J. FRAMKENBERG

200 i . -
\\4\5?;1[, | Robert J. Frankenberg is a founder and Chairman of the
Rl Board of Kinzan, Inc., a leading Web services software

.

company dedicated to creating products and services
that address the complex e-business needs of the extended enter-
prise. He previously was Chairman, President and CEO of Encanto
Networks, Inc., and also served as Chairman, President and CEO of
Novell, Inc. Prior to that he served as Vice President and General
Manager of Hewlett-Packard’s Personal Information Products
Group. He has a degree in computer engineering from San Jose
State University and is an SEP graduate of Stanford University’s
Graduate School of Business.

E. FLOYD KVAMME

E. Floyd Kvamme is a Partner at Kleiner, Perkins,

{ Caufield & Byers, a high-technology venture capital
firm responsible for developing companies from early
start-up to the IPO phase and beyond. He is also co-chair of the
Presidential Council of Advisers on Science and Technology. Floyd
Kvamme was one of five members of the team that began at
National Semiconductor in 1967, serving as its General Manager
and building it into a billion-dollar company. He holds two degrees

in electrical engineering.

DR. MODESTO A. MAIDIQUE
Dr. Modesto A. Maidique has since 1986 been

President of Florida International University in Miami,

a public research university that enrolls 31,000. Prior
to that, he served on the faculties of Stanford University, Harvard
University and the Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
Previously, he was a co-founder of Analog Devices Semiconductor,
and Vice President and General Manager of the Analog Devices
Linear IC Division.

EDWARD R. MicCRACKEN )
Edward R. McCracken retired as Chairman of Silicon

- | Graphics, Inc., Mountain View, California, in 1998. SGI
N designs, manufactures and markets visual computer
systems used for conceptual design, analysis and simulation.
Previously, he was associated with Hewlett-Packard for 16 years. He
is the former co-chairman of the United States Advisory Council on
the Information Infrastructure and also the former co-chairman of
Joint Venture: Silicon Valley Network. He is Chairman of The PRASAD

Project, a charitable foundation.
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National at a Glance

FOUNDED STOCK EXCHANGE,
1959 LISTING SYMBOL
HEADQUARTERS New York Stock

Santa Clara, California Exchange: NSM

FISCAL YEAR
May 28, 2001 to
May 26, 2002

EMPLOYEES
10,098

2002 SALES
$1.5 billion

DESIGN CEMTERS
AMND MANUFACTURING
FACILITIES

O Design Centers
O Manufacturing Facilities

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER
Brian L. Halla

UNEXPIRED
U.S. PATERTS
2,170

WEB SITE ADDRESS
www.national.com

Dec 3
2001

SALES BY REGION
FISCAL YEAR 2002

O 25% Americas
O 44% Asia Pacific
0O 21% Europe

O 10% Japan

Jan 28
2002

SALES BY MAJOR

MARKET GROUPS
FISCAL YEAR 2002

AN %D

O 75% Analog

0 11% Other

O 14% Information
Appliances

Feb 11
2002

National announces its
next-generation
Bluetcoth™ solution, an
all-CMOS two-chip chipset
designed to enable wire-
less communication
between consumer devices
such as information appli-
ances, cellular phones, PCs
and peripherals.

BUSINESS
HIGHLIGHTS

52

National introduces a
GSM chipset that inte-
grates a transceiver,
power management chip,
and analog and digital
basebands, clearly demon-
strating National’s com-
plete system solutions and
marking the company’s
entry into the tri-band
GSM market space.

National introduces three
new LMH amplifier prod-
ucts for the high-speed
analog market that are
based on National’s indus-
try-leading VIP10™ manu-
facturing process. These
products offer low noise,
low power and high band-
width for high-speed
applications such as xDSL
modems, cable and set-top
boxes, contact image scan-
ners and DVD players.

National announces it is
partnering with Foveon,
Inc., a technology leader in
high quality digital photog-
raphy, to produce imaging
sensors in our South Portland
facility that deliver twice
the sharpness of any digital
camera on the market. The
new Foveon® X3™ image
sensor captures red, green
and blue light at each and
every pixel.




CORPORATE STRATEGY

National Semiconductor is putting systems on a chip for our key trendsetting data highway

partners, using our analog expertise as a starting point for forward integration.

TRANSFER AGENT

AND REGISTRAR
EquiServe Trust
Company, N.A.

P.O. Box 43010
Providence, RI 02940-3010
1-800-730-4001 or
1-781-575-3120 or
1-781-575-3170
http://www.equiserve.com

INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS
KPMG LLP

WORLDWIDE
OPERATIONS

Headquarters

National Semiconductor
Corporation

2900 Semiconductor Drive
P.O. Box 58090

Santa Clara, California
95052-8090

Telephone (408) 721-5000

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Common Stock Data

The Company’s common
stock is traded on the
New York Stock Exchange
and the Pacific Exchange.

Mer 13
2002

Annual Meeting of
Shareholders

The annual meeting will
be held on or about
October 18, 2002. A
notice of the meeting,
together with a form of
proxy and a proxy state-
ment, will be mailed to
shareholders on or about
September 6, 2002, at
which time proxies will
be solicited by the Board
of Directors

MOTE TO ALL
STOCKHOLDERS

Keep the transfer agent
informed of your current
address. Failure to do so
may require National to
report your shares to the
state as unclaimed property,
even if National does not
have physical possession
of your stock certificate.
This can result in “escheat”
of your shares to the state.

FORM 10-K

If you would like to receive
a free copy of the compa-
ny’s “Form 10-K” filed

Apr 22
2002

with the Securities and
Exchange Commission,
please send your request to:

Investor Relations
Mailstop G2-397
National Semiconductor
Corporation

PR.O. Box 58090

Santa Clara, California
95052-8090

Telephone (408) 721-5800
Fax (408) 721-7254
invest.group@nsc.com

NSM
NYoE

TOP DISTRIBUTORS
Arrow Electronics
Asahi Glass

Avnet

Britestone, Ltd.
Future Electronics
Konnect
Pioneer-Standard
RDL

Siltrontech
Takachiho
Teampo

Teco Enterprises

TOP 30 CUSTOMERS
Alcatel

Bluetooth is a trademark of
Bluetooth SIG, Inc. and is used

Bosch under license by National
Delphi Semiconductor.
Dell Geode is a rademark of
Ericsson National Semiconductor
Fujitsu Corporation. All other brand or
Hewlert-Packard product names are trademarks
IBM or registered trademarks of their
Ve respective holders.
Kyocera Design: Broom & Broom,
LG Inc., San Francisco, California
Matsushita
Microcell Writers: Bill Callahan, Mike
Motorola Brozda, Jane ‘Karakawa,
Nokia National Semiconductor
Philips Brian Halla Photo: David
Quanta Magnusson
Samsung
Sanyo
Sharp
Siemens
Sony
Sony-Ericsson Mobile

Communications
TDK
Tektronix
Toshiba
TRW
VTech
Wavecom

Wyse Technology

National announces it has
created reference designs
for smart display devices
that support Microsoft’s
Windows® Powered Smart
Displays. This is Microsoft's
name for a set of Windows
software technologies

that will enable a new
generation of smart dis-
play devices and will
extend the Windows XP
PC experience through
out the home.

National enters the gigabit
Ethernet switch market,
unveiling the industry’s
fastest and most cost-
effective 16-port switch.
This new product is a
complete local area net-
work (LAN) gigabit switch
that offers the lowest
power consumption.

National expands its
CMOS imaging portfolio
with seven new CMOS
sensors for the rapidly
growing digital imaging
market. These new
sensors provide a diverse
choice of features, offering
low power dissipation, and
the best dynamic range
and light sensitivity avail-
able in the market today.

National introduces new
column drivers that use
RSDS™ (reduced swing
differential signaling) tech-
nology. Our single chip
FPD33684 column driver
provides low system
power and low electro-
magnetic interference for
thin film transistor liquid
crystal display panels in
notebook computers, mon-
itors and LCD televisions.




Nationai Semiconductor Corporation
2900 Semiconductor Orive

PO Box 58090

Santa Clara, CA 95052

1408 721 5000

Visit our Web site at
www.national.com

Investor Relations
Telephone: (408) 721-5800
Email: invest.group@nsc.com

National
Semiconductor
The Sight & Sound of Information




